
High Peak Borough Council

ECONOMY AND GROWTH SELECT COMMITTEE AGENDA

Date: Thursday, 22 November 2018

Time: 6.30 pm

Venue: The Octagon Lounge - Pavilion Gardens, Buxton

14 November 2018

PART 1
1. Apologies for Absence 

2. To receive Disclosures of Interest on any matters before the Committee 

3. Any matters referred to the Committee under the call-in procedure 

4. To approve the minutes of the previous meeting (Pages 3 - 6)

5. Future High Street Fund: Draft Buxton Visitor Economy Strategy & Glossop 
Creative Industries Assessment (Pages 7 - 38)

6. Derbyshire Local Economic Assessment 2018 (Pages 39 - 80)

7. Select Committee Work Programme (Pages 81 - 82)

8. Any questions referred to the Executive Member (Member Services to be advised of 
any questions at least 4 days prior to the meeting) 

SIMON BAKER
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Membership of Economy and Growth Select Committee
Councillor A McKeown (Chair) Councillor L Grooby (Vice-Chair)
Councillor R Atkins Councillor G Claff
Councillor P Easter Councillor S Flower
Councillor A Fox Councillor S Helliwell
Councillor R Quinn Councillor P N Roberts
Councillor K Sizeland Councillor F Sloman

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



ECONOMY AND GROWTH SELECT COMMITTEE

Meeting: Thursday, 27 September 2018 at 6.30 pm in The Cafe - Pavilion 
Gardens, Buxton

Present: Councillor A McKeown (Chair)

Councillors R Atkins, A Barrow, G Claff, A Fox, L Grooby, S Helliwell, 
R Quinn, P N Roberts and K Sizeland

In Attendance: Councillors T Ashton and T Kemp

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors P Easter, 
S Flower and F Sloman

19/15 TO RECEIVE DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST ON ANY MATTERS BEFORE 
THE COMMITTEE
(Agenda Item 2)

There were no declarations made.

19/16 TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
(Agenda Item 4)

RESOLVED:

That the minutes of the meeting held on 27 September 2018 be approved 
as a correct record.

19/17 STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT - APPROVAL FOR 
PUBLIC CONSULTATION
(Agenda Item 5)

To consider the Council’s Statement of Community Involvement (SCI) prior 
to public consultation.  The Authority’s most recent Statement of Community 
Involvement was adopted in May 2006.  There had been a number of 
changes to the planning system since this date.  In addition, a number of 
new opportunities to engage with the public (such as social media) had 
arisen.  For these reasons it was considered appropriate to update the SCI, 
bringing it in line with current legislation and public engagement methods.

Members of the Committee made a number of observations.  These 
included that the use of mailshots be included in the consultation document.  
It was explained that the start time of the Development Control Committee 
enabled committee members to attend site visits on the same day as the 
committee (further investigations had found that the venue was not available 
during evenings).  It was also suggested that members of the public may 
also contact members of the Development Control Committee with regard to 
their concerns but that committee members may not be able to respond until 
they have heard all of the evidence provided at Committee.  

High Peak Borough Council

Page 3

Agenda Item 4



Economy and Growth Select Committee
Thursday, 27 September 2018

RESOLVED:

1. That the contents of the report be noted.

2. That the Executive be recommended to approve the draft Statement of 
Community Involvement, subject to the observations made above, so far 
as enabling the commencement of a consultation exercise to inform a 
final version of the document to be considered later by Full Council.    

19/18 GOVERNMENT CONSULTATION RELATING TO THE USE OF RIGHT TO 
BUY RECEIPTS
(Agenda Item 6)

The Committee considered the Council’s response to the Government’s 
consultation on the use of right to buy receipts. The consultation response 
formed part of the wider consultation on the social housing green paper. 

Statistics released in March 2018 showed that nationally, local authorities 
have not been building/supporting enough right to buy replacement 
dwellings. The Government was aware that current restrictions around the 
use of the receipts were a barrier to delivery and there needed to be a 
greater flexibility of use.  It was clarified, that with regards to the draft 
response to question 1, the proposed extension from 3 to 5 years would 
provide more flexibility to spend existing right to buy receipts.

RESOLVED:

That the contents of the report be noted and that the Council’s response to 
the consultation, as set out in appendix 1 of the report, be recommended for 
approval.

19/19 SOCIAL HOUSING GREEN PAPER: A NEW DEAL FOR SOCIAL 
HOUSING
(Agenda Item 7)

The purpose of the report was to update members on the recently published 
social housing green paper which set out a vision and strategy for reforming 
social housing.  

The green paper sought to rebalance the relationship between landlords 
and tenants, tackle stigma and ensure social housing is a stable base that 
supports people and social mobility.  There were five core themes or 
principles:

 Ensure that homes are safe and decent 
 Effective resolution of complaints
 Empower residents and strengthen the regulator
 Tackle stigma and celebrate thriving communities
 Expand supply and support home ownership (which can be seen 

alongside previous White Paper commitments to fix the broken housing 
market)

Page 4



Economy and Growth Select Committee
Thursday, 27 September 2018

Members noted that there did not appear to be significant additional funding 
in real terms available to local authorities which, it was suggested, would be 
an issue.

RESOLVED:

That the contents of the report be noted and that the Council issues a 
response to green paper proposals.

19/110 GOVERNMENT CONSULTATIONS RELATING TO PERMITTED 
DEVELOPMENT RIGHTS FOR SHALE GAS EXPLORATION AND 
APPROVALS UNDER THE NATIONAL SIGNIFICANT INFRASTRUCTURE 
PROJECTS REGIME
(Agenda Item 8)

The Committee considered responses to two current Government 
consultations that related to permitted development rights for non-hydraulic 
shale gas exploration and approvals under the National Significant 
Infrastructure Projects regime respectively.

Members of the Committee supported the draft responses contained within 
the report.  It was reported that the views of the Peak District National Park 
were similar to that of the Borough Council’s.

RESOLVED:

That the contents of the report be noted and that The Executive be 
recommended to submit an appropriate response to the Government’s 
consultations.

19/111 SELECT COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME
(Agenda Item 9)

RESOLVED:

That the Select Committee Work programme be noted and suggestions 
welcomed.

The meeting concluded at 7.25 pm

CHAIRMAN

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL

Report to the Economy and Growth Select Committee

22 November 2018

     

Appendices
1 Buxton Visitor Economy Strategy

1 Reason for the Report

1.1 To brief members on the Future High Street policy paper published by the 
Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government last month and which is 
aimed at promoting more sustainable town centres in response to recent well 
publicised pressures on the retail sector and their impact on the traditional high 
street. It is understood that there may be opportunities to bid into a fund of 
£25million in each “area” (though it is as yet unclear what will constitute “an 
area”); and that there will be a separate national pot within the overall scheme 
consisting of at least £40million to be delivered under the aegis of Historic 
England and more specifically targeted toward assisting the recovery of historic 
towns and high streets (in England).

1.2 To receive the draft report of the Buxton Visitor Economy Strategy which has 
been commissioned by a Steering Group of key stakeholders in Buxton including 
the Borough Council.  The report is part of a larger commission which has been 
funded by the Heritage Lottery Fund and the Borough Council.

1.3 To recommend that, subject to the comments set out in this report, the Buxton 
Visitor Economy Strategy and the Glossop Creative Industries assessment 
(previously discussed and approved) might form the basis of an Expression of 
Interest in the Future High Street Fund when the prospectus is launched next 
year. 

2 Recommendations

2.1 The Committee is recommended:

(a) To note the contents of this report including the attached draft Buxton 
Visitor Economy Strategy on which views are invited

TITLE: Future High Street Fund: Draft Buxton Visitor 
Economy Strategy & Glossop Creative 
Industries Assessment

EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR Councillor Tony Kemp – Executive Portfolio for 
Tourism, Regeneration & Licensing

OFFICER: Richard Tuffrey – Principal Regeneration Officer

WARDS INVOLVED: Buxton Wards

Page 7

Agenda Item 5



(b) To request that the scope of the Buxton Visitor Economy Strategy be 
extended to include an assessment of the potential impact on, and 
opportunities for the wider High Peak and Derbyshire economies.

(c) That the Executive instruct officers to submit an Expression of Interest to 
submit a High Peak wide bid to the Future High Streets Fund which is 
expected to be announced early next year.

3 Executive Summary

3.1 The government has recently announced an initiative in response to the well 
publicised pressures on the retail sector and their impact on the traditional high 
street.   It is proposing to set up a High Streets Taskforce to support local 
leadership and to establish a new fund to support the renewal and reshaping of 
high streets and town centres.   The new fund (Future High Street Fund) is 
expected to be substantial with a total budget allocation of £675 million and it is 
anticipated that local authorities will be invited to express an interest in bidding 
for up to £25 million for comprehensive proposals within their “areas”.

3.2 This announcement is well timed as the Council has developed advanced- 
proposals to regenerate the public halls in Glossop and has in place a Creative 
Industries Assessment for the town. In addition the Council is currently being 
consulted on the draft report of the Buxton Visitor Economy Strategy developed 
by a range of key stakeholders and funded by the Heritage Lottery Fund.

3.3 The completion of the Crescent and Thermal Spa project in 2019 sets a 
challenge for those involved in Buxton’s visitor economy to “raise the game”; to 
be prepared and equipped to maximise the benefits that this new development is 
expected to bring to the town and the wider Peak District.   Using a grant from 
the Heritage Lottery Fund with a small amount of match-funding from the 
Council, a Project Group has commissioned consultants to prepare a Visitor 
Economy Strategy to ensure that the town maximises its market reach in terms of 
potential visitors; has the necessary infrastructure and support to manage the 
increased visitor numbers; and to ensure that their visit is an enjoyable one. 

3.4 Officers are recommending that the Council should support the draft strategy 
although it should be reviewed to ensure that the wider High Peak area is 
covered in its scope.  With this proviso, then the report can be taken forward with 
the Glossop Creative Industries Assessment (placed before the Select 
Committee in September 2017) to enable an expression of interest to be 
prepared by the Council and key partners in response to the call for bids 
anticipated next year.

4.       How this report links to Corporate Priorities 

4.1 The recommendations of this report are consistent with Aim Three of the 
Council’s corporate plan which is to support economic development and 
regeneration – measured through sustainable towns and rural communities and 
increased economic growth.    Key priorities under this aim include: 

 Flourishing town centres that support the local economy 

Page 8



 Promoting tourism 

5 Implications

5.1 Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)

Not relevant to the recommendations of this report.

5.2 Workforce

Not relevant to the recommendations of this report.

5.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment

Not relevant to the recommendations of this report.

5.4 Financial Considerations

There are no direct financial implications arising from this report as it refers to 
a potential future bid.  The draft Visitor Economy Strategy has been funded by 
a grant of £62,500 from the Heritage Lottery Fund and £5,500 from the 
Council’s Regeneration revenue budget.  

5.5
Legal

Not relevant to the recommendations of this report.
 

5.6 Sustainability

Not relevant to the recommendations of this report.

5.7 Risk Assessment

Not relevant to the recommendations of this report.
 

6 Background and detail

Future High Street Fund

6.1 Earlier this year, the government asked Sir John Simpson to consider the various 
issues surounding structural changes that the traditional high streets are facing – 
particularly from online shopping.  For example, between 2007 and 2018 online 
sales have increased 6-fold while growth of in-store sales has lagged behind. 
While in the year 2000 online retailing accounted for less than 1% of retail sales, 
in August 2018 almost a fifth of all retail sales were made online (Office for 
National Statistics).   

6.2 In the run-up to the Budget, Sir John made two main recommendations to the 
Chancellor and the Secretary of State: 

 That a High Streets Taskforce be set up to support local leadership, and…

Page 9



 That a new fund be established to support the renewal and reshaping of high 
streets and town centres. 

6.3 The Chancellor and the Secretary of State have agreed with the conclusions of 
Sir John’s report and his recommendations. In response, they have made 
provision for a new £675 million Future High Streets Fund to be set up to help 
local areas to respond to and adapt to these changes. It will serve two purposes: 
it will support local areas to prepare long-term strategies for their high streets and 
town centres, including funding a new High Streets Taskforce to provide 
expertise and hands-on support to local areas. It will also then co-fund with local 
areas projects including:

 Investment in physical infrastructure, including improving public and other 
transport access; improving flow and circulation within a town / city centre; 
enabling provision of congestion-relieving infrastructure; other investment in 
physical infrastructure needed to support new housing and workspace 
development and existing local communities;.

 Investment in land assembly, including support for increase the density of 
residential and workspace around high streets in place of under-used retail 
units.

6.4 Within the fund a defined element will also support the regeneration of heritage 
high streets (between £40million and £55 million of the overall fund). This has 
two elements: helping to restore historic high street properties through Historic 
England, and equipping communities with their own resources to put historic 
buildings back into economic use - for example as residential buildings, new work 
spaces or cultural venues, supported by the Architectural Heritage Fund.

Buxton Visitor Economy Strategy – Background and summary

6.5 The above government announcement is well timed in relation to the draft Buxton 
Visitor Economy Strategy on which the Council is currently being consulted.

6.6 Buxton is regenerating through an extensive programme of public and private 
sector-funded projects, based around its spa town heritage. This is now 
culminating in the delivery of one of the UK’s most ambitious heritage tourism 
projects – the £68 million Buxton Crescent and Thermal Spa project, which 
includes a luxury hotel and spa in the Grade I listed Georgian Crescent and 
adjoining spa buildings.

6.7 Completion of this project in 2019 sets a challenge for the town’s visitor economy 
as a whole – to be prepared and best equipped to maximise the benefits this new 
development should bring to Buxton and the wider Peak District. It certainly 
creates a new market currently not served in Buxton, with a distinctive new 
product and positioning based around a luxury experience. Buxton will need to 
respond to a new 5-star resort hotel in the offer, in a coherent and confident way, 
creating new experiences and reasons to visit that are also of high quality, in 
order to spread the benefit and sustain the market. 

Page 10



6.8 In preparation for this, the Heritage Lottery Fund (HLF), which has invested 
heavily in Buxton’s regeneration programme, has funded consultants to put 
together a Visitor Economy Strategy (VES). The HLF grant was required to be 
match funded by a small contribution from the Council’s Regeneration Team’s 
revenue budget.

6.9 The client for this work has been a Project Group made up of representatives 
from:
 the Buxton Crescent Heritage Trust
 the Buxton Opera House
 the University of Derby
 Derbyshire County Council 
 High Peak Borough Council

6.10 The consultants undertaking this work (Creative Tourist) have now presented a 
draft report which has been agreed by the Project Group for the purposes of 
consultation with the various stakeholders.  

6.11 An abridged version of the Draft Buxton VES is appended to this report.  It 
concludes that Buxton possesses the ingredients to develop a highly successful 
visitor economy. It is a quintessential heritage town – Roman origins, Georgian 
grandeur, Victorian innovation and entrepreneurship – with a strong and high-
profile cultural offer of theatre, opera, ballet, comedy, art, film and music plus 
major annual festivals. This is all set in cultured and green public spaces and 
surrounded by some of England’s most magnificent countryside, supported by 
enthusiastic volunteers, and with a huge catchment area and potential market on 
its doorstep.

 
6.12 In response to this, the Visitor Economy Strategy outlines a recipe for success, 

which includes the following themes and transformative ideas:

a) The town needs to act as one destination, one place and one 'business'.  
b) The town needs to create and unite behind a distinctive identity and narrative 

for the town.  
c) Buxton should identify the type of tourism that it wants.  
d) The town should improve the visitor infrastructure 
e) The improvement of the backstage facilities to the Buxton Opera House 

should be pursued as a priority.   
f) Buxton should be re-positioned as a Peak District town both in terms of 

physical measures to link it to its hinterland as well as its marketing and 
promotion.   

g) Buxton should promote collaborative year-round programming to support 
ambition, create fresh energy and bold ideas that can be planned and 
presented collectively

All of the above points are covered in more detail in the attached report.

6.13 It is suggested that a town-wide strategy for Buxton is urgently required given 
that the Buxton Crescent and Thermal Spa is programmed to reach completion 
and open for trading by the end of 2019.  This is amongst the UK’s most 
ambitious heritage tourism projects, having attracted one of the HLF’s largest 

Page 11



grants.  The opening in itself has the potential to attract national, and possibly 
international, publicity which will place Buxton in the spotlight.  As such, the 
benefits of the new visitor markets drawn to Buxton need to be spread as widely 
as possible to that the whole of the town centre looks striking and vibrant.  
However, equally important, the journey that the visitors take, from arriving in 
Buxton through to leaving it, needs to be a smooth and enjoyable experience.

6.14 Although the Council has a role to play in this, it will do so only as one of a 
number of partners.  It is suggested that there is an urgent need to establish a 
dedicated entity with a mandate to move the strategy forward and which brings 
the key visitor attractions together so that the town operates as one destination.

Council’s response to the draft Visitor Economy Strategy and potential 
Expression of Interest for the Future High Street Fund

6.15 The consultants preparing the draft strategy have worked to a brief that required 
them to focus on Buxton and its role as a gateway to the Peak District.  The draft 
strategy has presented a comprehensive set of proposals in response to this.   
Members may also recall the consideration of the Glossop Creative Industries 
Assessment by the Select Committee meeting held in September last year.  
Having both of these documents in place, reviewed as necessary to ensure that 
the potential of the wider High Peak and Derbyshire areas are properly assessed, 
will place the Council (and its partners) in a strong position to respond to the 
expected invitation to submit call for bids to the Future High Street Fund next 
year.  It is therefore recommended that the response from the Council to the draft 
Buxton VES is to review its scope and focus with a potential funding bid to the 
Future High Streets Fund is mind, most especially to give a stronger focus to the 
“Gateway” aspect.

Dai Larner
Executive Director (Place)

Web Links and Background Papers Contact details

Various background papers are available on request Richard Tuffrey x 4143

Page 12



Appendix 1

Buxton Visitor Economy Strategy  

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



VISITOR ECONOMY STRATEGY
Buxton’s cultural and heritage strength 
– an elemental approach for tourism, capitalising
on significant heritage and tourism investment

November 2018

P
age 15



1.1 BUXTON’S OPPORTUNITY 

– IN A NUTSHELL

Buxton is a town of considerable historic and contemporary heft, on 

the cusp of transformation driven by visionary ambition. It has a 

significant opportunity to grow its visitor economy. Its ‘hardware’ 

(built and natural environment) and ‘software’ (people, skills, 

community) are considerable. 

Buxton is a heritage spa town, with a strong cultural and heritage 

offer, surrounded by some of England’s most magnificent 

countryside, supported by enthusiastic volunteers, with a huge 

catchment area and potential market on its doorstep – a plethora of 

assets, for even half of which many a destination would give its eye 

teeth. 

The challenge is to bring all this together, identify improvements 

needed in visitor experiences, products and events, infrastructure 

and access, and encourage residents (and particularly existing 

organisations and volunteers) to coalesce behind a vision and 

competitive ‘sense of place’ for the town, which will provide a focus 

for their efforts and, thereby ultimately, enable Buxton to optimise 

the potential of its visitor economy.

This will require a structure for developing the visitor economy, with 

clear leadership and widespread cooperation amongst 

stakeholders. The recipe for realising this opportunity is a mix of 

imagination, cooperation, and determination.

02

1.2 STRATEGIC FOCUS AND ACTION ORIENTED

This report comprises a visitor economy strategy and destination 

management action plan for Buxton: 

1. The Visitor Economy Strategy (VES) is a road map for the 

next five years, identifying what kind of place Buxton wants to 

be and how it can optimise its visitor economy, through 

strategic priorities for the next five years.

2. The Destination Management Action Plan (DMAP) is a 

three-year action plan, which defines how Buxton can achieve 

these strategic objectives and how it can regularly measure 

progress. It proposes a set of actions with outline costings to 

deliver the strategic objectives (VES), with delivery targets and 

roles assigned. Treated as a ‘live’ ongoing plan, the DMAP 

should be updated and refocused over time and as progress 

is made. 

This Visitor Economy Strategy and Destination Management 

Action Plan aims to help Buxton position itself to seize this 

step-change opportunity, underpinning Buxton’s future 

economic success.

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

P
age 16



1.3 THE WAY FORWARD

This Visitor Economy Strategy outlines a recipe for success, which 

includes:

_ Creating and uniting behind a distinctive identity and narrative 

for the town;

_ Identifying the type of tourism Buxton wants – people who will 

spend more and spread this spending throughout Buxton 

businesses. This means focusing development and marketing 

activities on market segments that will deliver this, such as the 

culturally curious and independently active;

_ Improving the visitor infrastructure – from access and welcome 

through places to stay, eat, and things to do, to the public realm 

– to impress visitors;

1.3.1 Transformative elements

To this end the Destination Management Action Plan proposes a 

series of actions to implement this Visitor Economy Strategy. These 

comprise a mix of actions aimed at delivering both transformative 

and incremental change. Unsurprisingly, the Buxton Crescent & 

Thermal Spa project is a huge catalysing factor behind the 

transformation of Buxton’s visitor economy, and should sit in front 

of any list of transformational elements. 

03

WATER

The town’s heritage flows from it, its 
industry is built on it, and the 
contemporary tourism offer can be 
shaped around it.

These elements address key areas for Buxton to focus on – brand, 

culture, place, visitor experience and leadership – all themes that 

run throughout this Strategy.

1. To act as one destination, one place and one 'business'. In 

order to drive the delivery of this, there needs to be a new

leadership entity or organisation that has a clear mandate 

and the associated accountability for Buxton’s visitor 

economy. 

2. The improvement of the backstage facilities to Buxton Opera 

House should be pursued as a priority. This will allow an 

improved and expanded cultural offer to be delivered, in turn 

provide enhanced facilities for the Festival and increase the 

economic impact of the Opera House & Cinema. 

3. Collaborative year-round programming will support 

ambition, create fresh energy and bold ideas that can be 

planned and presented collectively.

4. Buxton should be re-positioned as a Peak District hub, both 

in terms of physical measures to link it to its hinterland and 

marketing and promotion. This would convey a modern-day 

pattern of spa visitation taking the waters, land and air. 

5. To articulate and promote a distinctive and compelling 

identity for Buxton by communicating a consistent narrative, 

based on five key characteristics: water, artistic, wellbeing, 

active, and heritage (WAWAH).

P
age 17



This section is a situation analysis. It assesses the current status of 

Buxton’s visitor economy, so that a clear idea of its assets and 

performance can be established and proposals for development 

and improvement can be made.

Buxton is at a key moment – an opportunity – for it to fulfil its 

potential as a tourism destination. 

However, in order to fulfil its market potential, Buxton could benefit 

from a greater range of accommodation, a more distinctive retail 

offer, and a greater number and range of quality places to eat, as 

well as sights or attractions that would hold visitors for more than a 

few hours. Underpinning this opportunity for growth is the need to 

develop a coherent, ‘stand-out’ identity, which distinguishes the 

town from all its competitors as a ‘must visit’ destination. This is its 

culture and heritage, which has strong and established foundations 

but with acknowledged potential to take cultural programming to a 

next level and attract new and bigger audiences, and connect to 

National Park visitors in new ways. To fulfil its role at the heart of 

the tourism offer, culture and heritage needs to stand-out on a 

national stage, it needs to activate and elucidate the Buxton 

identity, and be totally credible and compelling with the markets that 

it wants to attract. To do this the programming needs to be 

distinctive and coherent, matched by a level of service and facilities 

(for audiences and artists alike), which is currently not the case. It is 

encouraging to note that the town is looking closely at its cultural 

heritage assets – heritage asset management, cultural heritage 

leadership and strategic planning and investment. 

04

For visitors, this must mean a strong cultural ambition is projected 

from Buxton, through an ambitious, surprising, diverse and high-

quality calendar of events, experiences and festivals. Strategic 

planning and capital investments are vital of course, but must (and 

can) work alongside the equally important delivery assets released 

through local engagement and volunteering. A singular strategic 

planning framework will enable the right decisions and resources to 

be brought to bear on taking the cultural and heritage tourism offer 

to the next level.

Buxton is fortunate in its location, as a significant visitor market 

exists within 2-3 hours’ drive, not least the population within its 

immediate hinterland. With almost 6 million people living in the 

metropolitan areas of Manchester, Sheffield and Nottingham-Derby 

plus, not much further afield, another c.4.5 million in the Leeds-

Bradford and Liverpool city regions, this amounts to almost 20% of 

the English population within relatively easy access. Its proximity to 

Manchester Airport, particularly with the new relief road, also offers 

an opportunity to attract international visitors – for both leisure and 

conferences.

The challenge of improving physical access is clearly important. 

Roads into Buxton can be congested in peak periods and trains are 

comparatively slow and comprise older, basic rolling stock. Once 

here, directional and interpretive signage could be clearer and 

more informative within the town.

2. WHERE ARE WE NOW? 
THE CHALLENGE

P
age 18



05

2.1 SUMMARY OF INSIGHTS AS DESTINATION WHEEL ANALYSIS

Networks & agencies

Joint initiatives

Cultural heritage 
venues & infrastructure

Cultural heritage programme, 
events & packages

Market segments

Narrative

Vision

Strategies

Key messages

Visitor welcome
Infrastructure & 
resources

Communications

Campaigns

Wraparound offer: 
accommodation, food & drink

Leadership

Stakeholders & 
champions

2 10

WORKING 
ENVIRONMENT

WORKING 
PARTNERSHIPS

PRODUCT 
DEVELOPMENT

MARKET 
DEVELOPMENT

4 6
BUXTON 

DESTINATION 
WHEEL

©
 C

reative Tourist 2018

8

A destination wheel analysis was also 
undertaken. This offers a 360° perspective 
across four categories:

1. Working Environment – Good practice all 
starts with a vision, and the strategic 
infrastructure to drive that vision forward.

2. Working Partnerships – The networks, 
consortia and shared objectives that will 
drive progress across a destination.

3. Product Development – A strong and 
diverse offer is the starting point, but it is 
the whole experience that counts.

4. Market Development – Reflecting the 
strategic development required across 
partners to support marketing.

The Wheel presents a clear profile of the critical 
building blocks: where you are now, then 
overlaying where you want to be, say, in five 
years’ time. This is a stimulus rather than a 
statistical analysis, designed to encourage 
debate within the process. The current (solid 
line) and target (dotted line) ratings denote 
where strategic aspiration (+5 years) is at its 
strongest or most urgent, revealing where most 
impact is required to effect the necessary 
change. 

P
age 19



06

3. WHERE DO WE WANT TO BE? 
THE AMBITION
3.1 VISION

By 2023, Buxton will be a desirable spa destination to restore, 

reboot and reconnect, in the heart of the Peak District. It will 

attract visitors year-round as its historic setting meets cultural 

power and contemporary experiences – a source of physical

and mental reinvigoration and wellbeing set in a landscape of 

inspiration. 

This vision aims to deliver the following benefits to important and 

distinct groups of people:

Residents

_ Thriving, culturally exciting town, with an attractive, diverse and 

growing range of quality/value places to eat, drink and enjoy 

life, plus good shopping and entertainment facilities;

_ Year-round jobs in the visitor economy and associated supply 

chain;

_ Increased demand for skills, leading to a growth in higher-

waged jobs in the visitor economy supply chain, as tourism 

grows.

Visitors

_ Attractive town to visit for its rich mix of appeals: grand heritage, 

cultural programming that grabs the attention, wellness agenda 

made real, a relaxed feel, and natural environment – a great 

place to visit in its own right, as well as an ideal base from 

which to explore the Peak District.  

3.2 STRATEGIC AIMS AND OBJECTIVES

The following underlying strategic aims are proposed for the Buxton 

visitor economy, informing more detailed aims and objectives that 

will provide the directional thrust for the DMAP. Simply put, the 

aims are to achieve more jobs, revenue, off-season visitors and 

facilities. But ‘more’ needs a little more context.

3.2.1 Aims

Aim #1

Position in principle and practice Buxton as both a gateway to the 

Peak District National Park but also a place to stay and energise 

through its cultural and heritage offer and environs: Buxton – Peak 

District town.

Objective #1

Occupy a positive, high-profile place in the minds of target markets, 

operators and partners with a powerful, dynamic brand – which sits 

well within the Peak District offer. 

Objective #2

Develop personality-rich, consistent and relevant messaging, 

across culture, heritage and wellness - this character becomes 

Buxton’s sense of place. (This must then resonate with the arrival 

and orientation experience through information provision and tone 

of voice).

P
age 20



Aim #2

Work towards realising a singular vision that connects with the 

wider strategic plans for the town’s culture, heritage and tourism 

management – notably at a town and Peak District level.

Objectives

1. Set up a tourism leadership forum with priority stakeholders to 

oversee the management and delivery of the Destination 

Management Action Plan.

2. Invest in the appropriate human resources and evaluation to 

ensure the effective delivery of the Destination Management 

Action Plan

Aim #3

Increase the value of Buxton’s visitor economy.

Objectives 

1. Build a reliable, resilient and high-quality permanent and 

seasonal hospitality offer and workforce that has, and can 

develop, the skills and product necessary to serve an ever-

more demanding market.

2. Ensure Buxton remains a thriving town by creating 

sustainable, year-round jobs in the visitor economy.

3. Develop training partnerships to up-skill the workforce and 

encourage the retention of hospitality students. 

4. Spread the value of the visitor economy throughout the year, 

especially in the shoulder and off-peak seasons. 

07

BEYOND THE SUMMER

Off season does not of course mean a 
closed season. Through creative and well 
targeted product development and event 
programming, an off peak offer can grow. 
Buxton’s particular local climate is a further 
incentive to pursue this goal.

__________________________________

5 Value is measured by direct and indirect 
spend/output, using STEAM 2017 figures at 
2017 prices.
6 This value includes both direct and 
indirect expenditure at 2017 prices.
7 Includes direct and indirect employment.

Targets (see 3.3.1.1-2)

1. Grow the value of tourism to Buxton’s economy by 35% to 

£117m by 2023, from £87m in 20175.

2. Increase the value of tourism between Oct-April (six months) 

by 40% to £43m by 2023, compared with £31m in 20176.

3. Grow employment in the visitor economy by 24% to 1,407 jobs 

by 2023, an addition of 275 new jobs since 20177.

Aim #4

Encourage a balanced, diverse mix of quality accommodation, food 

& drink and retail that serves changing visitor markets, encouraging 

year-round visits.

Objectives 

1. Identify potential opportunities to encourage new 

accommodation, retail and food & drink providers to invest in 

Buxton that fit with the town’s brand values.

2. Work with partners, such as the University of Derby to identify 

entrepreneurial opportunities for the local hospitality sector.

Target (by 2023)

1. 5 new restaurants/bistros/cafes adding a different and 

distinctive quality to the Buxton food offer; 5 new independent 

/ boutique-style shops; c.300 new bedspaces / 3 new hotels 

(including Crescent Hotel @79 rooms / 158 bedspaces and 2 

new hotels @c.25 rooms / 50 bedspaces each.

P
age 21



Aim #5

Create a sustainable, engaging and distinctive year-round cultural 

offer that benefits locals as well as attracting visitors.

Objectives 

1. Attract and inspire investors to improve the quality of visitor 

products and experiences.

2. Create new experiences that are based on existing assets and 

reflect Buxton’s ‘sense of place’ (e.g. themed trails, guided 

walks, cultural events et al).

3. Transform the ability of regular, new and potential visitors to 

find out about Buxton, plan their breaks and curate their own 

itineraries to make the most of their visit, through all 

touchpoints, from personal to digital. 

4. Creatively and continuously develop the offer in areas that 

resonate with traditional, emerging and potential markets –

raising service levels across the town and developing new 

products across the calendar. 

These ambitious strategic aims and objectives provide the 

overarching route map for Buxton, but in order to be in a position to 

deliver, there are a series of strategic priorities (section 3.5) 

that need to be addressed to ensure a comprehensive and 

coordinated delivery programme through the Destination 

Management Action Plan. This strategy explores each priority in 

detail and directly links to the recommendations and subsequent 

actions identified in the Destination Management Action Plan.

08

This growth in visitor economy jobs is based on the following 

assumptions.

The targets outlined above are achieved, including:

_ c. 300 new bedspaces/3 new hotels (incl. Crescent Hotel @ 80 

rooms/160 bedspaces and 2 new hotels @ c. 25 rooms/50 

bedspaces each);

_ Serviced accommodation operates @ 75% occupance p.a.;

_ Crescent Hotel opens in Aug 2019 = 4 months of operation in 

2019.

DEVONSHIRE SPA

Spa treatments are already an 
established part of the offer, supported 
further by the University of Derby’s 
Spa Management degree courses.

The Devonshire Spa was named a 
regional winner for best Luxury 
Emerging Spa in Northern Europe, at 
the prestigious World Luxury Spa 
Awards 2017. 

P
age 22



2109

xxxxx: xxxxx.
3.3 STRATEGIC PRIORITIES

3.3.1 Culture and heritage – Progressing an already strong culture and heritage offer 

through investment, development, and promotion for current and new target markets.

3.3.2 Leadership and collaboration – Increase levels of collaboration across the 

key players – around a shared vision and plan – with clear and mandated tourism 

leadership closely aligned to culture and heritage.

3.3.3 Brand and positioning – Create and embed a distinctive, compelling brand 

proposition for Buxton, using culture and heritage as key differentiators.

3.3.4 Product and service development – Identify and develop new products and 

services would add to the offer, including developing the current range of attractions, 

tours, events and experiences, both consumer facing and backstage facets.

3.3.5 Visitor journey – Ensure an easy to access, comprehensive, consistent, 

year-round visitor service from planning to arrival, welcome and orientation.

3.3.6 Accommodation – Raise the bar on quality, increase variety of offer and 

manage the potential impact of short-term lets, notably through the sharing economy.

3.3.7 Food & drink and retail – Drive quality and a market-responsive, innovative 

offer, and attract / retain talent.

3.3.8 Public realm – Connect the town’s ‘enclaves’ and present to fit the brand 

values and visitor expectations.

P
age 23



4. HOW DO WE GET THERE? 
THE ROUTEMAP
This section identifies strategic priorities to be addressed in 

achieving the aims set out under Where Do We Want to Be? It also 

broadly defines key areas for action. These actions are further 

elaborated in the Destination Management Action Plan, along with 

specific tactics, timescales, and responsibility for delivering them. 

4.1 BRINGING BUXTON’S IDENTITY TO LIFE

4.1.1 The need for a coherent identity

Buxton’s significant set of visitor assets can combine to give the 

tourism narrative a distinctive identity, supporting a series of stories 

(to tell relentlessly) and compelling messages for potential visitors. 

Over time, this will engender a coherent identity for the town, 

creating ‘stand out’ in the fiercely competitive visitor marketplace. 

And, by providing a clear set of narratives for everyone to use –

across all media and visitor touchpoints – their repetition will add to 

a cumulative (and affordable) marketing buzz about Buxton. 

4.1.2 Narrative

A series of interconnected narrative streams will help define the 

essence of Buxton’s character. These need to be selective and 

specific in constructing a distinctive competitive identity. Narrative 

elements can be applied through a brand development framework 

into a visual and verbal brand language (but not a logo or strapline).

To this end, we have defined five ‘narrative hooks’ (for ease of 

10

recall, these can be stated mnemonically as WAWAH):

_ Water (the natural, life-giving anchor – alongside stone –

responsible for the town’s creation);

_ Arts (the culture and heritage, events and festivals that 

animate the town with a strong personality);

_ Wellbeing (the physical and mental tonic that the waters and 

surrounding natural environment provide for visitors, whether 

tranquil or more socially active);

_ Activity (connecting with the great outdoors – walking, cycling, 

climbing, exploring and generally building up an appetite);

_ Heritage (the DNA, which connects all of Buxton, both in terms 

of its physical history and contemporary appeal).

4.1.3 Implementation – the Buxton way

The combination of these five physical narrative hooks, the 

emotional associations and visitor benefits are the basis for 

Buxton’s competitive identity. Talking about Buxton using its 

narrative hooks and imbuing such stories and marketing 

communications with one or more of the emotional feelings 

associated with Buxton, will help create an understanding amongst 

potential visitors of what makes Buxton different and, therefore, 

worth visiting.

It goes without saying that all official publicity and marketing 

material for Buxton should clearly convey these messages about 

Buxton, tailored appropriately for each market segment being 

targeted. But it is also imperative that all who promote or talk about

P
age 24



11

5. HOW DO WE KNOW WHEN WE’RE 
SUCCESSFUL? THE RESULT
5.1 PROGRESSIVE FOCUS 

The focus in Year 1 is on getting the DMAP up and running. The 

focus in Year 2 will be very much about implementing policies and 

plans developed in Year 1, and building on activities undertaken in 

Year 1. The focus in Year 3 will be on continuing and consolidating 

activities undertaken in Years 1 and 2. 

As lessons are learnt from undertaking activities in Years 1 and 2, 

and new circumstances and opportunities emerge, proposed DMAP 

activities should be reviewed and refined. Therefore, in light of 

these potential new circumstances, DMAP activities in Year 3 are 

likely to change considerably from those proposed at the start of 

this process (Year 0). Nevertheless, as a basis for Year 3, the 

following actions are proposed, which represent a continuation of 

activities begun in Year 1 and pursued in Year 2.

5.2 KEY TO DESTINATION MANAGEMENT 
ACTION PLAN

VES Visitor Economy Strategy

CHAR Cultural Heritage Assets Review

DMAP Destination Management Action Plan

UoD University of Derby

BCHT Buxton Crescent Heritage Trust 

BCTSH Buxton Crescent & Thermal Spa Hotel

BOH Buxton Opera House

BIF Buxton International Festival

BFF Buxton Festival Fringe

VPD&D Visit Peak District & Derbyshire

HPBC High Peak Borough Council

DCC Derbyshire County Council 

DCHTB Derbyshire Culture Heritage & Tourism Board

D2N2 D2N2 Local Enterprise Partnership

PDNP Peak District National Park

VB Vision Buxton

NWUK Nestlé Waters UK Ltd.

The priorities detailed in the DMAP follow directly from those set 

out in Section 3.5. 

P
age 25



12

5.1 PROGRESSIVE FOCUS 

The focus in Year 1 is on getting the DMAP up and running. The 

focus in Year 2 will be very much about implementing policies and 

plans developed in Year 1, and building on activities undertaken in 

Year 1. The focus in Year 3 will be on continuing and consolidating 

activities undertaken in Years 1 and 2. 

As lessons are learnt from undertaking activities in Years 1 and 2, 

and new circumstances and opportunities emerge, proposed DMAP 

activities should be reviewed and refined. Therefore, in light of 

these potential new circumstances, DMAP activities in Year 3 are 

likely to change considerably from those proposed at the start of 

this process (Year 0). Nevertheless, as a basis for Year 3, the 

following actions are proposed, which represent a continuation of 

activities begun in Year 1 and pursued in Year 2.

5.2 KEY TO DESTINATION MANAGEMENT 
ACTION PLAN

VES Visitor Economy Strategy

DMAP Destination Management Action Plan

UoD University of Derby

BCHT Buxton Crescent Heritage Trust 

BCTSH Buxton Crescent & Thermal Spa Hotel

BOH Buxton Opera House

BIF Buxton International Festival

BFF Buxton Festival Fringe

VPD&D Visit Peak District & Derbyshire

HPBC High Peak Borough Council

DCC Derbyshire County Council 

DCHTB Derbyshire Culture Heritage & Tourism Board

D2N2 D2N2 Local Enterprise Partnership

PDNP Peak District National Park

VB Vision Buxton

NWUK Nestlé Waters UK Ltd.

The priorities detailed in the DMAP follow directly from those set 

out in Section 3.5. 

P
age 26



13

5.3 DESTINATION MANAGEMENT ACTION PLAN

YEAR 1 (2019)

PRIORITY 1: CULTURE & HERITAGE – INVEST IN, DEVELOP AND PROMOTE AN ALREADY STRONG CULTURE & HERITAGE OFFER FOR ITS CURRENT & NEW TARGET MARKETS

Target Action Lead / support Investment/
funding required

Deadline/ 
milestone

Evaluation measure

Formalise creative programming collaborations, 
(e.g. BOH and BIF)

Follow through the process 
set out in the recent 
cultural heritage assets 
review. 

HPBC / BCHT, DCC, BOH, 
BIF, MPD&D

TBA 2019, ongoing Shared programme
planning and delivery

Develop culture and heritage operator management 
model

Follow through the process 
set out in the recent 
cultural heritage assets 
review. 

HPBC / BCHT, DCC, BOH, 
BIF, MPD&D

N/A planning 2019 New management 
model and 
governance / legal 
status established

Support the investment in BOH backstage to enable larger 
and more diverse programming

Drive agenda through 
planning and management

BOH / HPBC, VES lead 
(new post) 

TBA 2019-21 Expanded staging 
capability impacting 
new programming 
and creative partners

Identify potential event producer partners Liaise with BOH, BIF, BFF 
to build target database; 
invite around ‘think tank’ 
summit / round table 

VES lead (new post) / 
cultural stakeholders, task 
& finish group

Est. £2-3k 2019 Outputs of summit 
should be actionable; 
new partners 
secured

Develop a heritage/culture-led tourism information hub Sense check /  support / 
advise existing TIC plans  
for Pump Room

BCTSHT / VES lead (new 
post), task & finish group

N/A 2019, ongoing As part of digital and 
brand reviews

Partner with Derbys. Culture, Heritage & Tourism Board Confirm participation and 
means of reporting / 
dissemination / agenda-
setting

VES lead (new post) / 
HPBC, DCC, BCTSHT

TBA 2019, ongoing Increased level of 
market knowledge; 
roles in county-wide 
initiatives

P
age 27



14

YEAR 1 (2019)

PRIORITY 2: LEADERSHIP & COLLABORATION – FOR STIMULATING FUTURE DEVELOPMENT, PARTNERSHIP PRACTICE AND MONITORING AROUND A SHARED CULTURAL 
HERITAGE TOURISM VISION AND PLAN

Target Action Lead / support Investment/
funding required

Deadline/ 
milestone

Evaluation measure

Fully integrate tourism planning with social and economic 
master plans

Audit policies / strategies to 
ensure Buxton visitor 
economy agenda is fully 
incorporated & represented

VES Transitional Team / 
VPD&D, DCC, DCHTB

N/A 2018 Buxton embedded in 
key regional 
strategies

Actively secure adoption of this Strategy across all key 
agencies and stakeholders

Launch and maintain 
advocacy programme

VES Transitional Team N/A 2018 Media, corporate, 
group and social 
media response

Secure funding and create a leadership / management 
role for the visitor economy in Buxton

Secure funding / resource; 
recruit / assign role; 
establish wider 
management model

VES Transitional Team / 
VPD&D

TBA, est. £30-35k 
pa

For financial year 
2019/2020

Post-holder in place 
within management 
model & support; 
clearly defined role

Evolve the VES Project Group into a transitional team to 
oversee strategy roll-out and ongoing local engagement 
using a collaborative co-design model

Appoint members of 
transitional team; set terms 
and first phase targets

VES Transitional Team / 
officer and other 
representational 
stakeholders

N/A Upon adoption of 
VES

Team in place and 
operational

Establish 'task & finish' groups to drive recommended 
actions through to completion

Identify topics for ‘task and 
finish’ groups to address 
and appoint appropriate 
people

VES Transitional Team / 
officer and other 
representational 
stakeholders

N/A TBA, from 
transitional team

Groups in place and 
active; set terms and 
roles; tasks clear, 
timed and monitored

Create robust and sustainable data capture, research 
and evaluation model

Audit all data / research to 
build digest; adjust metrics 
to fit wider methodologies; 
cost infrastructure needs

VES lead (new post) / local 
stakeholders

N/A in 
development

2019 New data capture 
and data sharing 
processes in place; 
better reporting

P
age 28



15

YEAR 1 (2019)

PRIORITY 3: BRAND & POSITIONING – CREATE AND EMBED A BRAND PROPOSITION, USING CULTURE AND HERITAGE AS KEY DIFFERENTIATORS, TO TELL A DISTINCTIVE, 
COMPELLING BUXTON STORY

Target Action Lead / support Investment/
funding required

Deadline/ 
milestone

Evaluation measure

Develop strong cultural narrative, brand messages and a 
series of 'stories’ – through a structured brand 
development process

Develop min. 3 generic 
stories per feature, inc.
connected stories

VES lead (new post) / task 
& finish group / local 
stakeholders

Within brand 
development 
process (see 
below)

2019 Stories developed, 
integrated into brand 
guides, start to be 
used by agencies, 
partners and local 
stakeholders

Embed Buxton’s own ‘sense of place’, brand values and 
personality

Develop marketing plan, 
set resources; prepare 
online brand narrative
guide; assess copywriting 
needs to kickstart

VES lead (new post) / task 
& finish group

TBA est. £10-15k 
(brand guide, 
copywriting base)

2019 Agreed marketing 
plans and brand 
guide (inc. visual & 
verbal assets) in 
place and adopted

Improve critical skills – comms/digital, welcome, 
hospitality, business tourism, heritage tours, brand 
adoption etc. 

Stakeholder training 
workshops, toolkits/guide 
developed; regular 
stakeholder 
communications 
established

VES lead (new post) / task 
& finish group

TBA, costs 
included in 
previous point, 
plus training, est. 
£5-10k

2019 Brand approach 
adoption; annual 
survey and review of 
standards, innovation

Build continual monitoring of the quality of tourism 
products and services

Set up VES monitoring and 
control model, including 
data and research 
framework

Task & finish group / VES 
lead (new post) , HPBC, 
MPD&D

N/A 2019 Annual review/report

Develop and test brand and product offer, and market 
through travel trade / media trips

Programme, schedule and 
invite limited target media / 
trade, linked to MPD&D 
activity.

VES lead (new post) , 
MPD&D, HPBC, DCHTB

TBA est. £3-5k pa 2019, ongoing Media features; 
planned future trips; 
no. of media / tour 
operators hosted; no. 
of tour programmes 
including Buxton

Prioritise promotional investment on specific priority 
target segments

Create a VES formative 
evaluation model

VES lead (new post) / 
HPBC, VPD&D

N/A 2019 Model approved, in 
use; decision-making 
records to review

P
age 29



16

YEAR 1 (2019)

PRIORITY 4: PRODUCT & SERVICE DEVELOPMENT – NEW PRODUCTS & SERVICES, INC. DEVELOPING THE CURRENT RANGE OF ATTRACTIONS, TOURS, EXPERIENCES, EVENTS

Target Action Lead / support Investment/
funding required

Deadline/ 
milestone

Evaluation measure

Explore options to develop the wellbeing market offer Identify and develop 

creative packages that 

connect the commercial 

operators to the town and 

hinterland; market test

VES lead (new post), 

BCTSH, BCTSHT / task & 

finish group, local 

stakeholders

N/A 2019 Visitor nights and 

package bookings; 

number of partners 

engaging with 

markets

Develop niche opportunities in the business tourism 
conference market

Identify, target and develop 

sectoral packages that 

connect the commercial 

operators to the town; 

market test

VES lead (new post) / local 

stakeholders (inc. hotels, 

university)

N/A 2019 Corporate event 

bookings; number of 

venues engaging 

with markets

Develop new downloadable self-guided trails 
of/to/through Buxton

Identify narrative routes; 

develop content

VES lead (new post) / task 

& finish group, local 

stakeholders

Est. £5-10k pa 2019, ongoing User volume on new 

trail product; reviews;  

bookable product / 

on sales conversion

Develop new cultural heritage walking & cycling trails 
of/to/through Buxton

Identify potential cycle / 

hiking routes link to PDNP; 

planning (consults, content, 

infrastructure, comms etc.)

VES lead (new post) / task 

& finish group, local 

stakeholders

N/A initially 2019 Routes identified and 

next stage 

development 

planning in place

Enhance relationship with Nestlé Review new  BCTSHT 

partnership agreement to 

map next phase 

opportunities

BCTSHT / VES transition 

team

N/A initially 2018, ongoing Successful roll-out of 

partnership; new /  

extension activities

Support the Pump Room to develop its full potential as a 

visitor gateway experience
Review plans in context of 

local partners to support 

programme and visitor 

welcome/offer

BCTSHT / VES transition 

team, VES lead (new post), 

task & finish group

N/A 2019, ongoing TIC online, on-site 

and programmed 

event traffic; 

qualitative ratings

Monitor opportunities to reintroduce a seasonal heritage 
rail link to the town

Maintain communication 

channel with Peak Rail 

representatives

Task & finish group / VES 

lead (new post)

N/A 2019, ongoing Subject to planning; 

new campaign 

activity / reach

P
age 30



17

YEAR 1 (2019)

PRIORITY 5: VISITOR JOURNEY – ENSURE AN EASY-TO-ACCESS, COMPREHENSIVE, CONSISTENT, YEAR-ROUND VISITOR SERVICE… FROM PLANNING TO ARRIVAL, WELCOME 
AND ORIENTATION, TO POST-VISIT

Target Action Lead / support Investment/
funding required

Deadline/ 
milestone

Evaluation measure

Advocate to improve rail experience: rolling stock, 
regularity of service, arrival

Meet with Northern Rail to 
explore opportunities

HPBC / VES lead (new 
post), local stakeholders

N/A 2019 Clear sense of
commercially realistic
e.g. reducing journey
time, investment
plans, route / stations 
branding etc.

Review, update and start implementing of Wayfinding
Strategy in Buxton, inc. interpreting significant sites

Develop brief and 
commission study to map 
and recommend town-wide 
schema; cost and begin 
fundraising

HPBC / VES lead (new 
post)

TBA 2019 Turnkey brief ready 
to commission 
comprehensive 
uprated scheme, with 
removal of redundant 
signage collateral

Ensure a dynamic, optimised, easily navigable website 
hub for Buxton

Develop branded content, 
architecture (building on 
visitbuxton) for a new 
tourism platform suite 

VES lead (new post), task 
& finish group, VB / HPBD, 
VPD&D 

Est. £20-30k 2019 All new visit Buxton 
platform live and 
integrated to partner 
platforms

Identify and pursue technology and skills needs Conduct a digital audit of 
capacity, capability and set 
against market needs

VES lead (new post) / 
HPBC, task & finish group 

Est. £10k 2019 Actioned and funded 
recommendations 
from audit

Take a town-wide approach to transforming and producing 
visitor content

Develop a town-wide (and 
PDNP connected) content 
editorial plan

VES lead (new post) / 
MPD&D, task & finish 
group 

N/A planning 2019 Content editorial plan 
adopted; increase in 
online (inc. brand 
compliant third-party 
platform) traffic and 
conversion

P
age 31



18

YEAR 1 (2019)

PRIORITY 6: ACCOMMODATION & HOSPITALITY – RAISE THE BAR ON QUALITY, INCREASE VARIETY OF OFFER, AND MANAGE THE POTENTIAL IMPACT OF SHORT-TERM LETS

Target Action Lead / support Investment/
funding required

Deadline/ 
milestone

Evaluation measure

Seek to attract new hotel investors to Buxton Identify 3 potential new 
hotel investors (boutique, 
independent, mid-range)

VES Transitional Team / 
task & finish group, HPBC, 
VPD&D

N/A 2019 Longlist targets 
identified, with initial 
assessment

Launch the new Buxton Crescent Thermal Spa Hotel Luxury 80-bed resort hotel 
open

Danubius Hotels / BCTSHT N/A (secured) 2019 TBA On target launch; 
Year 1 trading 
performance data, 
reviews etc.

Improve the quality of Buxton’s serviced accommodation Promote participation in 
existing quality assurance 
(QA) schemes by serviced 
accommodation providers 
pa. Establish an 
accommodation network to 
promote benchmarking, 
and peer support

VES lead (new post) / local 
stakeholders, HPBC, D2N2 

Nominal 2019 TBA Programme
participation levels 
up over 10% in first 
year, and successive 
two years; 
Accommodation 
network for town fully 
established

Monitor the impact of short-term lets of non-serviced 
accommodation on the local housing market, notably 
Airbnb

Identify number/scale of
short-term lets of non-
serviced accommodation in 
Buxton; Assess potential
housing market impact and
take any necessary steps 
to mitigate (e.g. min. no. of
days)

VES lead (new post) / 
HPBC 

N/A 2019 Inventory of short-
term lets up-to-date; 
policy developed on 
short-term lets

P
age 32



19

YEAR 1 (2019)

PRIORITY 7: FOOD & DRINK, AND RETAIL – DRIVE QUALITY AND A MARKET-RESPONSIVE, INNOVATIVE OFFER, AND ATTRACT/RETAIN TALENT

Target Action Lead / support Investment/
funding required

Deadline/ 
milestone

Evaluation measure

Seek ways to encourage culinary innovation to boost the 
evening economy

UoD explore possibilities 
with local businesses, 
landlords’; stage pilot event

VES lead (new post) / task 
& finish group, UoD, 
HPDC, local stakeholders

TBA 2019 TBA Identified 
opportunities; 
develop programmes
accordingly; attract 5
businesses and 1-2k 
consumers to pilot

Provide quality improvement and business development 
advice regarding existing schemes and peer support

Identify interested 
businesses; develop 
scheduled plan

VES lead (new post) / task 
& finish group, HPDC, 
D2N2, local stakeholders

TBA 2019, ongoing Plan live and 
monitoring in place

Stage networking events for food businesses Monitor opportunities; 
stage two events

VES lead (new post) / local 
stakeholders

TBA, est. £1.5-3k 2019 TBA Stage pilot event and 
inform follow-up 
event; Attract 25
businesses to pilot

Support efforts to attract new and diverse retail outlets to 
Buxton

Monitor opportunities VES lead (new post) / task 
& finish group / HPBC

N/A 2019 TBA Up-to-date 
intelligence on trends
and opportunities

Monitor balance between shops serving visitors’ and 
residents’ needs

Assess visitor demand, 
perceptions and behaviour; 
engage major retail 
landlords and create 
conditions to ensure 
sustainability of shops to 
serve residents’ needs

HPBC / Task & finish 
group, VES lead (new 
post), local stakeholders

N/A 2019 TBA Performance data 
and qualitative 
responses (survey); 
raised awareness –
develop policy if 
required

Develop ‘pop-up’ vacant retail spaces policy Assess vacancy rates, 
gather best practice

HPBC / Task & finish 
group, VES lead (new 
post), local stakeholders

Direct N/A, subject 
to project / 
partners

2019 TBA Policy in place; 
no/much reduced
vacant retail spaces
in town centre

P
age 33



20

YEAR 1 (2019)

PRIORITY 8: PUBLIC REALM – CONNECT AND PRESENT THE TOWN’S ‘ENCLAVES’ TO FIT BRAND VALUES AND MEET VISITOR EXPECTATIONS, MAKING BUXTON ACCESSIBLE, 
LEGIBLE AND ATTRACTIVE THROUGH ITS PUBLIC SPACES AND SIGNAGE

Target Action Lead / support Investment/
funding required

Deadline/ 
milestone

Evaluation measure

Explore options for visitor-focused active volunteer/team Research and consult 
destination volunteer 
programme models; assess 
capacity and capability 
needs to target gaps; 
develop Buxton model

VES lead (new post), task 
& finish group / BTT, VB, 
local stakeholders

N/A planning, est. 
£2-5k pa 
operational

2019, ongoing Recruitment, 
retention, volunteer 
surveys, 
development of 
volunteer packages 
and scope of works

Reflect elements of Buxton brand narrative as extensively 
as possible in public realm developments, signage etc.

Identify pipeline projects; 
brief / engage project 
planning officers; assess 
proposed public realm 
projects (dressing, planting, 
street art, lighting, signage, 
interpretation, furniture 
etc.)

VES lead (new post) / 
HPBC 

N/A 2019, ongoing Narrative guidance
incorporated in all
new public realm
plans

Design and erect welcome signage/dressing at key
arrival and dwell points

Commission design team 
to develop visual scheme 
options (e.g. A6, A515, 
A53, A5004, transport 
gateways); 

HPBC / VES lead (new 
post), task & finish group

TBA 2019 planning Uprated scheme in 
place, with removal 
of redundant signage 
collateral

Maintain visual appeal and minimise degradation of the 
natural and built environment

Audit townscape, 
responsible agencies

VES lead (new post) / task 
& finish group, HPBC

N/A 2019 Projects in pipeline / 
underway 

Build in ‘water’ led elements to public realm planning Develop a plan to identify
opportunities for reinforcing
and projecting Buxton’s
brand image

HPBC, VES lead (new 
post) / task & finish group

TBA 2019 planning Integrated scheme in 
place, with some key 
site ideas available 
for consultations

P
age 34



21

YEAR 2-3 (2020-2021)

Develop Continue Review Implement Develop Continue Review Implement

PRIORITY 1: CULTURE & HERITAGE 
Formalise creative programming collaborations, (e.g. BOH and BIF)
Develop culture and heritage operator management model
Identify potential event producer partners
Develop a heritage/culture-led tourism information hub
Partner with Derbys. Culture, Heritage & Tourism Board
PRIORITY 2: LEADERSHIP & COLLABORATION 
Fully integrate tourism planning with social & economic master plans
Actively secure adoption of Strategy across agencies / stakeholders
Secure funding and create a leadership / management role 
Evolve VES Project Group into a transitional team
Establish 'task & finish' groups to drive actions
Create robust, sustainable data capture, research & evaluation model
PRIORITY 3: BRAND & POSITIONING 
Undertake a visitor brand development process
Embed Buxton’s own ‘sense of place’, brand values and personality
Improve critical skills 
Build continual monitoring of the quality of tourism products and services
Develop / test brand & product offer; market through travel trade
Prioritise promotional investment on specific priority target segments
PRIORITY 4: PRODUCT & SERVICE DEVELOPMENT 
Explore options to develop the wellbeing market offer
Develop niche opportunities in the business tourism conference market
Develop new downloadable self-guided trails of/to/through Buxton
Develop new cultural heritage walking & cycling trails of/to/through Buxton
Enhance relationship with Nestlé
Support the Pump Room to develop as a visitor gateway experience
Monitor opportunities to reintroduce a seasonal heritage rail link

2020 2021

P
age 35



22

YEAR 2-3 (2020-2021)

Develop Continue Review Implement Develop Continue Review Implement

PRIORITY 5: VISITOR JOURNEY 
Advocate to improve rail experience
Review, update and start implementing of Wayfinding Strategy
Ensure a dynamic, optimised, easily navigable website hub for Buxton
Identify and pursue technology and skills needs
Take a town-wide approach to transforming and producing visitor content
PRIORITY 6: ACCOMMODATION & HOSPITALITY 
Seek to attract new hotel investors to Buxton
Launch the new Buxton Crescent Thermal Spa Hotel
Improve the quality of Buxton’s serviced accommodation
Monitor the impact of short-term lets of non-serviced accommodation 
PRIORITY 7: FOOD & DRINK, AND RETAIL
Seek ways to encourage culinary innovation to boost evening economy
Provide quality improvement and business development advice
Stage networking events for food businesses
Support efforts to attract new and diverse retail outlets to Buxton
Monitor balance between shops serving visitors’ and residents’ needs
Develop ‘pop-up’ vacant retail spaces policy
PRIORITY 8: PUBLIC REALM
Explore options for visitor-focused active volunteer/team
Reflect elements of Buxton brand narrative in public realm developments
Design and erect welcome signage/dressing at key arrival and dwell points
Maintain visual appeal / minimise degradation of natural & built environment
Build in ‘water’ led elements to public realm planning

2020 2021

P
age 36



Commissioned by

Produced by

SARA HILTON ASSOCIATES       

P
age 37



T
his page is intentionally left blank



HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL

Report to Economy and Growth Select Committee

22 November 2018

TITLE: Derbyshire Local Economic Assessment 
2018

EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR: Councillor Tony Kemp - Executive Councillor 
for Tourism, Regeneration & Licensing

CONTACT OFFICER: Sarah Porru – Interim Regeneration Manager

WARDS INVOLVED: All Wards

Appendix 1 – Derbyshire Local Economic Assessment

1. Reason for the Report

1.1 To inform and update Councillors on the findings of the Derbyshire Local 
Economic Assessment 2018

2. Recommendation

2.1 That the report be noted. 

3. Executive Summary

3.1 The purpose of the 2018 Derbyshire Local Economic Assessment (LEA) is to 
provide a picture of how the county’s economy is currently performing against 
core economic indicators, along with how things have changed since the last 
LEA in 2014.

3.2 The report concludes that:

 Derbyshire’s economy continues to grow and is now worth £14.9 billion. 
Productivity levels are also improving across the county, helping to narrow the 
gap between Derbyshire and England.

 Derbyshire’s employment structure is markedly different from the national 
picture. Locally, manufacturing remains a key sector accounting for nearly a 
fifth of all employment, more than double the national rate. The visitor 
economy is also a significant sector locally, employing 22,500 full-time 
equivalent workers. In contrast, employment in the service sector such as 
Business administration, Professional & scientific, Finance and the 
Communication sectors is underrepresented in the county.

Page 39

Agenda Item 6



 Derbyshire has shown positive growth across all key economic performance 
indicators since the last LEA in 2014. 

 Since the last LEA in 2014 the size of Derbyshire’s economy has grown by 
15.0% (£1.9bn) and High Peak has experienced the second highest growth 
levels across the county, exceeding the national increase.

 Bolsover (23.2%) and High Peak (18.7%) have seen the largest increases in 
private sector employment. 

 Manufacturing is the largest sector in five of the county’s districts including 
High Peak, with mineral production being recognised as a major sector in the 
area. 

 Tourism is the UK’s fastest growing employment sector, and in 2016 visitors to 
Derbyshire generated £1.6bn to the economy. 

 In March 2018, 33 of Derbyshire’s 174 wards had an unemployment rate 
above the national average (2.1%) Gamesley is one of these wards with an 
unemployment rate of 2.9%. However the unemployment rate in Gamesley 
has fallen since 2017. 

 Across the majority of Derbyshire districts including High Peak, the earnings of 
those living in the area (residence based) are significantly higher than the 
earnings of those who work in the area (workplace earnings) reflecting the 
high number of residents leaving the County for work. 

 Whilst Derbyshire has fewer people qualified to NVQ level 4+ than the national 
average of 38.3%, High Peak has 43%.  

The report also highlights the following opportunities to continue to encourage 
growth:

 Stimulating interest in and supporting entrepreneurship within the county

 Support to existing businesses to ensure the key sector strengths that already 
exist across the county are built upon and developed

 Maximise opportunities that arise through HS2 and Brexit. 

 Promoting the county and what it has to offer, to both visitors and potential 
inward investors.

 Ensuring future transport investment links up with the planned development of 
sites in Derbyshire

Page 40



4.        How this report links to Corporate Priorities 

4.1 The Local Economic Impact Assessment is consistent with Aim Three of the 
Council’s corporate plan which is to support economic development and 
regeneration – measured through sustainable towns and rural communities 
and increased economic growth.    Key priorities under this aim include: 

• Encouraging business start-ups and enterprises
• Flourishing town centres that support the local economy 
• Promoting tourism

Dai Larner
Executive Director (Place)

Web Links and
Background Papers

Location Contact details

https://observatory.d
erbyshire.gov.uk/wp-
content/uploads/repo
rts/documents/econo
mic/LEA.pdf

Sarah Porru

sarah.porru@highpeak.
gov.uk

6. Detail

6.1 This evidence and analysis contained within the LEA will be used to inform 
any future reviews of the existing Derbyshire Economic Strategy Statement, a 
document that sets out the strategic direction for economic development across the 
county. The evidence base will also inform the development of a Strategic Planning 
Framework for the county and an Employment and Skills Strategy to provide a 
comprehensive strategic evidence base for influencing planning, attracting funding 
and investment into the area and to improve local economic growth.

Page 41

https://observatory.derbyshire.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/reports/documents/economic/LEA.pdf
https://observatory.derbyshire.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/reports/documents/economic/LEA.pdf
https://observatory.derbyshire.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/reports/documents/economic/LEA.pdf
https://observatory.derbyshire.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/reports/documents/economic/LEA.pdf
https://observatory.derbyshire.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/reports/documents/economic/LEA.pdf


This page is intentionally left blank



   

 

P
age 43



 2 

 

P
age 44



 

 3 

 

Contents 

Table of Contents 

Introduc�on ………………………………………………………………………...4 

Key economic indicators ……………………………………………………...5 

Summary ………………………………………………………………………....6-8 

Economic analysis …………………………………………………………..9-32 

Economic geography …………………………………………………………..9 

Transport …………………………………………………………………………..10 

Investment sites ………………………………………………………………..11 

Broadband ………………………………………………………………………...12 

Housing ……………………………………………………………………………..13 

Economic growth ………………………………………………………..…….14 

Produc#vity ……………………………………………………………………….15 

Major employers ……………………………………………………………….16 

Entrepreneurial ac#vity ……………………………………………………..17 

Employment structure ……………………………………………………….18 

Manufacturing …………………………………………………………………..19 

 

Visitor economy …………………………………………………………………..20 

Private sector employment ………………………………………………….21 

Popula#on ……………………………………………………………………………22 

Travel to work ………………………………………………………………………23 

Employment …………………………………………………………………………24 

Employment forecasts ………………………………………………………….25 

Unemployment …………………………………………………………………….26 

Earnings ……………………………………………………………………………….27 

Qualifica#ons ……………………………………………………………………….28 

Occupa#ons ………………………………………………………………………….29 

Appren#ceships …………………………………………………………………...30 

Young people ……………………………………………………………………….31 

Skills demand ……………………………………………………………………….32 

SWOT analysis ……………………………………………………………...33-35 

End notes …………………………………………………………………………..36 

P
age 45



 4 

 

 

 

 

Assessments of how the local economy is performing have been 

produced by upper #er local authori#es since the introduc#on of the 

Local Democracy, Economy Development and Construc#on Act in 2009. 

The purpose of the 2018 Derbyshire Local Economic Assessment (LEA) is 

to provide a picture of how the county’s economy is currently 

performing against core economic indicators, along with how things 

have changed since the last LEA in 2014. 

 

The document analyses the latest available data to highlight key trends 

and iden#fy the current issues facing the local economy. This evidence 

and analysis will be used to inform any future reviews of the exis#ng 

Derbyshire Economic Strategy Statement, a document that sets out the 

strategic direc#on for economic development across the county. The 

evidence base will also inform the development of a Strategic Planning 

Framework for the county and an Employment and Skills Strategy. All 

documents are complementary and will provide a comprehensive 

strategic evidence base for influencing planning, a?rac#ng funding and 

investment into the area and to improve local economic growth. All of 

this informa#on and analysis is available on the Derbyshire Observatory 

website. 

 

Policy context 

Na#onally, the Government published its Industrial Strategy in 2017 

with the aim of building a Britain fit for the future. The focus is on using 

local strengths to deliver economic opportuni#es. It will be supported 

by Local Industrial Strategies, which the D2N2 Local Enterprise  

 

 
 

 

 

 

Partnership (LEP) will lead on across the Derbyshire and 

NoBnghamshire area. The LEP is currently refreshing its Strategic 

Economic Plan to  iden#fy the economic strengths and challenges 

currently facing the area, which will help to inform this work. The 

Midlands Engine, a coali#on of public sector partners and businesses 

that works alongside the Government to boost the region’s economy, 

will also play a key role here.  

 

The current economic landscape provides a number of challenges and 

opportuni#es for local businesses that will need to be factored into local 

strategic plans. Following the 2016 Referendum the UK is scheduled to 

leave the EU in March 2019. The 21-month transi#on period that will 

follow this will help firms to prepare, however, there will be some 

uncertainty for businesses un#l the outcomes are clearer. 

 

Industry is about to undergo a period of transforma#on as a result of 

greater automa#on and data exchange under the banner of Industry 4.0.
1 

It is likely to lead to some occupa#ons becoming redundant as new ones 

emerge. With manufacturing remaining Derbyshire’s largest employment 

sector, the county is likely to see an impact.  

 

HS2 is the new high speed railway being built to be?er connect people 

and businesses across Britain. It will help to transform the posi#on of local 

towns such as Chesterfield by halving the travel #me to London. The 

establishment of a maintenance depot at Staveley will also help to boost 

employment prospects locally.    

Introduc�on 

P
age 46



 

 5 

 

Key economic indicators 

Derbyshire has shown posi�ve growth across all key economic 

performance indicators since the last LEA in 2014 

Derbyshire’s economy is worth 

£14.9 billion and has shown 

strong levels of growth over recent 

years 

Change since 2014 

Derbyshire +15.0% 

England +17.1% 

Higher level qualifica#ons have in-

creased, 33% of the working age 

popula#on are now qualified to de-

gree level or above 

Produc#vity levels have improved 

significantly in Derbyshire with out-

put per hour now £30.30, closing 

the gap with England   

Change since 2014 

Derbyshire +15.6% 

England +8.1% 

3,505 new businesses set up in the 

county in 2016, the fourth year in a 

row where more businesses were 

formed than closed 

Change since 2014  

Derbyshire +2.0% points 

England +2.4% points 

The county’s employment rate has 

con#nued to increase. It now stands 

at 78% and remains 3% points higher 

than the na#onal rate 

Change since 2014 

Derbyshire +2.7% points 

England +4.2% points 

Change since 2014  

Derbyshire +3.0% points 

England +3.9% points 

 

P
age 47



 6 

 

Derbyshire is a large diverse county with a popula#on of 786,700 people. 

The county benefits from being centrally located in the UK with strong links 

to the neighbouring ci#es of Derby, NoBngham, Sheffield, Manchester and 

Leicester.  

 

Chesterfield is the main urban area with a popula#on of 104,500. The 

county also has a number of market towns that play a significant role in the 

local economy both as employment centres and providers of services to 

residents. A large part of the north and west of the county is very rural, 

most of it falling within the Peak District Na#onal Park.  

 

By 2039, Derbyshire’s overall popula#on is forecast to grow by 10%. In 

addi#on to this, the county is forecast to have fewer people of working age 

and an increasingly ageing popula#on. Not only will there be fewer 

working age people to support the local economy, service providers will 

also have to deal with the demands of a growing and ageing popula#on, 

which can have implica#ons for the level and cost of many public services.   

 

Derbyshire’s economy con#nues to grow and is now worth £14.9 billion. 

Produc#vity levels are also improving across the county, helping to narrow 

the gap between Derbyshire and England.  

 

The county is home to more than 29,500 businesses that employ around 

300,000 people. The area has significant strengths in the advanced 

manufacturing sector, with a number of world class companies such as  

 

Summary 

P
age 48



 

 7 

 

Toyota, Rolls Royce and Bombardier choosing to locate and invest in 

the county and its surrounding area. Although Derbyshire has fewer 

new businesses star#ng up than England, the survival rate of local 

businesses con#nues to be higher. 

 

Derbyshire’s employment structure is markedly different from the 

na#onal picture. Locally, manufacturing remains a key sector 

accoun#ng for nearly a fiMh of all employment, more than double 

the na#onal rate. The visitor economy is also a significant sector 

locally, employing 22,500 full-#me equivalent workers. In contrast, 

employment in the service sector such as Business administra#on, 

Professional & scien#fic, Finance and the Communica#on sectors is 

underrepresented in the county.  

 

Over the next 15 years, Derbyshire’s employment levels are 

es#mated to increase, with an addi#onal 10,000 jobs forecast. The 

service sector is forecast to see some of the largest growth levels, 

whilst a decline is predicted in a number of Derbyshire’s 

manufacturing sub-sectors. Further advances in automa#on in the 

manufacturing sector will play an important role in the coming 

years. Advances in technology and data exchange as part of Industry 

4.0 are expected to lead to reduc#ons in the workforce in some 

areas of the sector locally. These developments will support the 

sector though helping to drive improvements in produc#vity and 

compe##veness.    

 

Derbyshire is an a?rac#ve and predominantly affordable place to 

live. Housing availability is one of the key challenges facing the UK  

P
age 49



 8 

 

 

due to there being insufficient supply to meet current and future 

popula#on demands in some areas. Locally there is sufficient planned 

housing to meet the expected levels of demand overall. However, 

affordability is an issue in certain parts of the county, par#cularly in rural 

areas. 

 

Derbyshire has a large pool of available labour with above average 

employment levels. Unemployment rates are below average, although 

there are areas where unemployment levels are more than double the 

na#onal average. 

 

The overall qualifica#on levels of Derbyshire’s residents con#nues to 

improve, despite rela#vely fewer people in the county holding a higher 

level qualifica#on than across England. The occupa#onal profile of both 

Derbyshire residents and employers is also below average, reflec#ng the 

county’s lower skilled industrial structure. Resident earnings remain higher 

than workplace earnings, sugges#ng that many people commute out of the 

county for higher paid employment opportuni#es. Although earning levels 

have been increasing they remain below the na#onal average.  

 

Levels of educa#onal a?ainment at age 16 and 18 in Derbyshire are just 

below the na#onal average. Across the county there is considerable 

varia#on with a?ainment at age 16 being rela#vely lower in Erewash, 

Bolsover and South Derbyshire. Despite this, the county has performed 

well on appren#ceships in recent years.    

 

 

 

 

P
age 50



 

 9 

 

Economic Geography  

Derbyshire is a large county situated in the East 

Midlands with a popula#on of 786,700. It includes the 

boroughs of Amber Valley, Chesterfield, High Peak and 

Erewash, and the districts of Bolsover, Derbyshire Dales, 

North East Derbyshire and South Derbyshire. The 

county encircles the unitary authority of Derby City and 

along with Derby, NoBngham and NoBnghamshire, 

forms the D2N2 Local Enterprise Partnership. 

Derbyshire’s central loca#on means that residents and 

businesses contribute to, and benefit from, 

neighbouring economies, par#cularly those of 

Manchester, NoBngham and Sheffield.  

Over a quarter of Derbyshire’s popula#on live in rural 

communi#es, with a large part of the North and West of 

the county falling within the Peak District Na#onal Park, 

an important asset. Although Chesterfield is the major 

urban centre locally, a number of smaller market towns 

play a significant role in the local economy as 

employment centres and providers of services. These 

include Belper, Buxton, Ilkeston, Long Eaton, 

Swadlincote, Bakewell and Dronfield. 

                           Derbyshire’s administra�ve area 

P
age 51



 10 

 

Transport                             Derbyshire’s transport network 

Derbyshire is highly accessible, with the M1 providing 

easy access to the North and South with the A50 and 

A38 also being important links. The county is well 

served by rail including the Sheffield to Birmingham and 

Sheffield to London mainlines. Derbyshire is also within 

easy reach of Doncaster Sheffield, East Midlands and 

Manchester airports.  

Derbyshire’s transport asset is es#mated to be worth 

£3.5bn. It is a significant part of the county’s 

infrastructure, allowing people to get around by driving, 

walking, cycling or public transport. The maintenance, 

management and development of the network 

therefore plays a vital part in suppor#ng the local 

economy and its future growth. 

The county’s infrastructure is set to be further 

enhanced by the development of the high speed rail 

route HS2, which is planned to open in 2033. Direct 

benefits locally will stem from services being run from 

Chesterfield and the proposed Infrastructure 

Maintenance Depot at Staveley. However, disrup#on to 

the wider transport network locally during the 

construc#on phase is likely to have an impact. Across 

the East Midlands HS2 has the poten#al to help deliver 

an addi#onal 74,000 jobs and almost £4bn towards the 

UK economy over the next 25 years. 

P
age 52



 

 11 

 

 

Investment in key development sites is essen#al to 

secure Derbyshire’s economic growth. Across the 

county, a number of infrastructure projects are 

providing employment poten#al for firms. In the High 

Peak and Derbyshire Dales commercial sites include 

Ashbourne Business Park, Chapel Business Park, 

Graphite near Glossop and Riverside Business Park in 

Bakewell.  

Within the Chesterfield area investment includes the 

Avenue site, the £340m Chesterfield Waterside scheme, 

Egstow Park, the Glass Yard and the Northern Gateway 

development. Addi#onally, Peak Resort will become 

one of the UK’s flagship tourism developments. Other 

schemes in the eastern part of the county include 

Castlewood near Alfreton, Tudor Cross near Bolsover, 

and Markham Vale, which con#nues to offer firms 

opportuni#es.  

In the southern part of the county, Dove Valley Park 

offers poten#al for distribu#on firms and manufacturers 

whilst the Infinity Park extension will also provide 

employment land in South Derbyshire. Commercial 

developments are also planned at Belper Mills, Denby 

Hall, the area to the North of Denby, the former 

Stanton Ironworks in Erewash, Drakelow Park in South 

Derbyshire, and Tollgate Park near Swadlincote.  

Investment sites  

Source: Derbyshire Economic Partnership, 2017 

Key development sites across Derbyshire 

       Key 

The Avenue 

Castlewood 

Chesterfield Waterside 

Egstow Park 

Markham Vale 

Northern Gateway    

Peak Resort 

Tudor Cross     

The Glass Yard     

Ashbourne Business Park  

Chapel Business Park 

Graphite, Glossop   

Buxton 

Riverside Business Park, Bake-

well 

Belper Mills 

Denby Hall 

Land North of Denby 

Dove Valley Park 

Drakelow 

Infinity Park Extension 

Stanton 

Swadlincote Town Centre 

Tollgate Park, Woodville 

 

P
age 53



 12 

 

Broadband  

Technology plays a crucial role in enabling local 

businesses to compete. Since 2014, Derbyshire County 

Council has been working in partnership with BT to lay 

hundreds of miles of fibre op#c cable, bringing be?er, 

faster broadband to Derbyshire through the £34m 

Digital Derbyshire programme. To date the programme 

has delivered fibre broadband to over 100,000 

premises, of which, over 90% can obtain speeds in 

excess of 24Mbps (superfast). Take-up of fibre services 

currently stands at 41% across the county.    

The programme is currently on track to deliver fibre 

broadband to over 112,000 (102,000 superfast) 

premises by June 2020. When combined with the 

commercial coverage already provided, the aim is for 

98% of homes and businesses in Derbyshire to be able 

to access speeds of at least 24Mbps. The programme 

also includes an incen#ve whereby take up of fibre 

services throughout the project area results in 

addi#onal funding being made available to extend the 

fibre footprint throughout the county. 

As it will not be possible to provide fibre services to 

every premise in Derbyshire, subsidy and voucher 

schemes are in place to assist homes and small 

businesses in the local communi#es with their 

broadband services. 

Source: Derbyshire County Council, May 2018 

Digital Derbyshire – roll out of fibre broadband, 

May 2018 

P
age 54



 

 13 

 

Since 2014, house prices in the county have been 

gradually increasing, however this growth remains 

below the na#onal rate.  Areas such as Belper have 

seen above average increases in house prices and it is 

one of the top 10 towns across England for house price 

growth in 2017. 

Derbyshire is a largely affordable place to live with an 

average house price of £162,000. Although this is 29% 

lower than the England average of £227,950, this varies 

significantly across the county, from £124,000 in 

Bolsover to £245,000 in the rural district of Derbyshire 

Dales. Affordability is an issue in parts of Derbyshire, 

par#cularly in Derbyshire Dales where there is a higher 

demand for houses. Being located in the Peak District 

Na#onal Park, the district is a sought aMer loca#on and 

the visitor economy has an impact on both house prices 

and housing stock in this area due to the high number 

of holiday and second homes. 

Mee#ng the demand for housing is one of the key 

challenges facing the UK. In Derbyshire, whilst the 

growth in housing has been on a par with that 

na#onally, South Derbyshire has seen the fourth fastest 

rate of housing growth across England. The demand for 

housing is set to con#nue locally, however there is 

sufficient planned housing to meet the expected 

demand over the next five years. 

Housing  

£229,000-£520,000 

£175,000-£229,000 

£142,000-£175,000 

£127,000-£142,000 

£66,000-£127,000 

Ashover has the highest 

average house price in 

Derbyshire at £520,000 
 

Shirebrook East has the  

lowest average house 

price in Derbyshire at  

£66,500 

© Crown copyright and database rights (2018) 

Ordnance Survey Licence Number [100023251] 
   

Median house prices by ward (June 2017) 

Source: HPSSA 2 – Median House Price by Ward, quarterly rolling year ending June 2017, CLG 

P
age 55



 14 

 

Economic Growth 

In 2016, Derbyshire contributed £14.9bn towards the 

UK’s economy. The four sectors that currently generate 

the most locally are Distribu#on, transport, 

accommoda#on and food (21.9%), Manufacturing 

(21.8%), Public services (16.9%) and Real estate 

ac#vi#es (12.5%).  

Since the last LEA in 2014 the size of Derbyshire’s 

economy has grown by 15.0% (£1.9bn). This is slightly 

less than the 17.1% experienced na#onally, but over the 

last year local growth has matched that na#onally with 

respec#ve increases of 3.5% and 3.7%. Over the last 

four years Bolsover, High Peak and Amber Valley have 

experienced the highest growth levels across the 

county, all three exceeding the na#onal increase. North 

East Derbyshire, South Derbyshire and Derbyshire Dales 

have seen the lowest at around 10%.    

The sectors contribu#ng most during this #me have 

been Distribu#on, transport, accommoda#on & food 

(£0.8bn) and Manufacturing (£0.5bn). In the former, the 

greatest increase has been in Chesterfield and Bolsover 

(both £0.2), the la?er reflec#ng developments at 

Markham Vale. In Manufacturing, Amber Valley has 

seen the largest rise (£0.1bn). Across the county, two 

other sectors have also shown strong growth, 

Professional services (£0.3bn) and Real estate (£0.2bn).   

Change in economic growth (1998-2016) 

Percentage change in economic growth by district (2012-2016) 

Economic growth fell considerably 

across all areas due to the impact of 

the 2008/09 recession  

Source: Regional Gross Value Added (Balanced) by Local Authority, 2016, ONS, © Crown Copyright 

P
age 56



 

 15 

 

Produc#vity has been an issue for Derbyshire in recent 

years with output per hour lagging behind that 

na#onally, although the gap appears to be closing. Since 

the last LEA, produc#vity has improved by 15.6% in the 

county compared to 8.1% across England.       

Although the total output from the UK economy has 

recovered rela#vely well since the 2008 recession, 

produc#vity growth, or the amount of output per hour 

worked, has grown more slowly.  Although the UK is not 

alone amongst western economies in this, this has been 

a bigger issue for the UK. The produc#vity level in four 

of the G7 na#ons is markedly higher than the UK, where 

the output per hour worked is 15.1% below the G7 

average. 

This has prompted commentators to refer to the UK’s 

produc#vity puzzle, with recent employment growth 

not being accompanied by a growth in produc#vity. 

Raising produc#vity levels is of vital importance to the 

economy as it can lead to greater profitability and help 

play a role in improving living standards.  

Produc#vity in Derbyshire now stands at £30.30 per 

hour, lower than the £33.10 for England. Across the 

county, South and West Derbyshire has the highest 

value locally at £31.10 whilst in East Derbyshire the 

figure is £29.00.    

Produc�vity 

Source: Sub-Regional Produc#vity 2016 and Interna#onal Comparisons of UK Produc#vity 2016, ONS, © Crown Copyright      

England = £33.10 

Derbyshire = £30.30 

Interna�onal comparisons of produc�vity (2016) 

Produc�vity per hour worked (2016)  

Output per hour worked in the UK was 

15.1% below the average for the rest of 

the G7 advanced economies in 2016 

Produc#vity per hour 

worked (UK =100) 

P
age 57



 16 

 

In 2017, Derbyshire was home to around 29,500 

businesses, an increase of more than 15% since the last 

LEA. Small employers dominate with 88% of businesses 

employing fewer than 10 people. Although less than 1% 

of businesses in the county employ 250 or more 

employees, they are of significance to the local 

economy due to the numbers of people they employ. 

Manufacturing is the largest sector in five of the 

county’s districts. In South Derbyshire car produc#on is 

important, centred on Toyota and firms in the supply 

chain such as Futaba. Food produc#on is the biggest 

Manufacturing sub-sector in both Amber Valley and 

North East Derbyshire with companies such as Griffiths 

Foods and Gunstones Bakery. Erewash is a centre for 

upholstery with firms like Bellfield Furnishings whilst in 

High Peak non-metallic mineral produc#on is important 

with LHOIST being a major employer.    

In Bolsover, Sports Direct employs a significant number 

of employees whilst in Chesterfield, Health is the largest 

sector with the Royal Hospital and health companies 

such as Arthri#s Research UK being based in the district. 

The visitor economy plays a major role in Derbyshire 

Dales with employers such as Chatsworth House Trust.   

Major employers 

Sources: UK Business Ac#vity Size & Loca#on 2017, ONS, © Crown Copyright, and Business Lis#ngs for D2N2 Schools, D2N2 LEP     

P
age 58



 

 17 

 

Entrepreneurship levels 

Source: Business Demography 2016, ONS, © Crown Copyright 

The number of business start-ups can be used to 

provide an indica#on of the level of entrepreneurship 

in the local economy. In 2016, there were 3,505 new 

business start-ups across the county, a rate of 11.7%. 

Whilst this rate is lower than the England average of 

15.0%, this has improved since the last LEA in 2014 

when the rate was just 9.7%.  

The rate of business start-ups in the county 

marginally exceeds the business closure rate of 9.9%. 

Overall there was a net change of 1.8% gain in 

business locally.  Across the county all districts 

experienced a posi#ve net gain of businesses with the 

largest net changes taking place in Bolsover (5.7%) 

and South Derbyshire (3.7%). 

New businesses face many challenges star#ng up and 

not all survive beyond their first year. Historically, 

Derbyshire firms have seemed more resilient than 

their na#onal counterparts with higher business 

survival rates. This has also remained the case since 

the last LEA, with business survival rates being 

consistently higher, for example 63% of Derbyshire 

firms born in 2013 were s#ll in business in 2016, 

higher than the 61% survival rate for England.  

P
age 59



 18 

 

Derbyshire businesses currently employ around 290,900 

workers. Following a dip in 2013 employment levels 

have improved locally and over the last year there has 

been a large increase of more than 11,000 new 

employees.  

Five sectors in the county account for almost 60% of 

employees locally with the largest sector being 

Manufacturing. The county’s employment mix is quite 

different to that across England. Employment in the 

Manufacturing sector in Derbyshire is more than double 

that for England, whereas the Professional, scien#fic & 

technical sector is weaker as is the Informa#on & 

communica#ons sector. Sector specialisms within the 

county include Manufacturing in Amber Valley and 

South Derbyshire, Health in Chesterfield and 

Accommoda#on & food in Derbyshire Dales.     

By sector, Accommoda#on & food has seen the greatest 

rise in employment over the last four years with around 

9,000 more employees. Other sectors experiencing  

high growth levels include Construc#on and the 

Professional, scien#fic & technical sector. However, 

Educa#on has been par#cularly hit, with a loss of nearly 

11,000 jobs, as has Public administra#on with 4,500 

fewer employees. Manufacturing has 1,000 fewer jobs 

and the recent announcement by Rolls Royce of job 

losses in Derby is likely to have a further impact locally. 

Employment Structure 

Source: Business Register and Employment Survey, 2016, ONS, © Crown Copyright 

Employment by sector (2016) 

P
age 60



 

 19 

 

UK manufacturing has been through a long period of 

decline. Despite this, the sector remains a crucial part of 

the local economy, genera#ng £3.3bn (22%) of the 

county’s economic output. Locally, the sector provides 

jobs for over 50,000 employees represen#ng 17% of 

Derbyshire’s total employment, nearly double that 

na#onally. Employment levels are greatest in South 

Derbyshire and Amber Valley where over 20% of 

employees in these areas work in the Manufacturing 

sector.          

The most significant manufacturing sub-sectors are 

Food & drink produc#on and Metals & metal products, 

which employ nearly a third of the county’s total 

manufacturing workforce. However, these two sectors 

have had mixed fortunes since the 2008 recession. Food 

& drink has experienced the greatest increase in jobs 

(+2,100) whilst Metals & metal products (-1,750) has 

seen a large decline. The greatest fall though has been 

in other non-metallic minerals (-2,750), e.g. concrete 

products.       

Overall since the last LEA the share of the county’s 

employment in Manufacturing has declined with the 

loss of around 1,000 jobs. Chesterfield saw the largest 

decline with 750 jobs lost whilst Erewash has seen the 

greatest increase (+500 jobs).    

Manufacturing  

Source: Business Register and Employment Survey, 2016, Office for Na#onal Sta#s#cs, © Crown Copyright  

Ac#vity Size & Loca#on 2016 and Business Demography 2015, ONS, © Crown Copyright 

Employment in Manufacturing (2009-2016) 

Manufacturing remains a key sector locally, accoun#ng for 

almost a fiMh (17.4%) of all employment across the county, 

more than twice the na#onal average of 8.0% 

P
age 61



 20 

 

Visitor Economy  

Derbyshire is a spectacular county with a beau#ful 

natural landscape rich in natural resources. Alongside 

this, the county also has a diverse heritage with 

several historic towns and buildings of great interest 

and importance.  

Tourism is the UK’s fastest growing employment 

sector. Locally the sector supports 22,500 full-#me 

equivalent jobs. In 2016 around 32m visitors came to 

Derbyshire, contribu#ng more than £1.6bn to the 

economy. Nearly 75% of this was direct income and 

25% indirect income generated by firms involved in 

the supply chain, such as food producers. Since the 

end of the recession, the sector has performed well 

locally with a rise of nearly 3 million visitors, growth 

of £150m in visitor spend and a 9% rise in 

employment. Improvement has been driven by day-

trippers (+10%), the county’s largest visitor group.  

Encouragingly, the length of #me overnight visitors 

are staying in serviced accommoda#on has grown 

(+20%), despite a fall in the amount of serviced 

accommoda#on available. Whilst there has been a 

rise in new bou#que B&Bs and limited growth in the 

hotel sector, Derbyshire remains rela#vely light in 

hotel provision. Conversely, non-serviced provision is 

seeing growth through holiday co?ages but 

par#cularly through sta#c caravans/chalets.  Sources: STEAM data, 2016, Global Tourism Solu#ons (UK) and D2N2 Visitor Accommoda#on Strategy, June 2017, Hotel Solu#ons 

P
age 62



 

 21 

 

Private sector employment 

There are nearly 240,000 people employed within the 

private sector in the county, represen#ng 82.5% of total 

employment, just below the figure for England (83.0%). 

Within the county, the greatest levels of private sector 

employment are in South Derbyshire (88.3%) and 

Bolsover (86.8%) whereas in Derbyshire Dales (79.1%) 

and par#cularly Chesterfield (74.0%) the levels are 

lower due to higher levels of public sector employment.  

Rebalancing the economy in favour of the private sector 

has been a government priority since the 2008 

recession. Since the last LEA, private sector 

employment has grown by nearly 24,000 employees in 

Derbyshire or 11.0%. This is just below the rise of 13.6% 

seen na#onally but is s#ll significant and means that 

there has been an increase of more than 7% points 

locally over the last four years. Bolsover (23.2%) and 

High Peak (18.7%) have seen the largest increases.     

In contrast, public sector employment in Derbyshire has 

declined significantly over the last four years falling by 

30.2%, significantly higher than the 5.9% fall na#onally.  

Over half of the decline has been across the three 

districts of Derbyshire Dales (-5,500 employees), 

Chesterfield (-3,500) and High Peak  

(-3,000).     

Public and private sector employment levels (2011-2016) 

England 

Derbyshire 

Private sector employment  

Public sector employment  

Public and private sector employment levels by District (2016)  

Source: Business Register and Employment Survey, 2016, ONS, © Crown Copyright 

P
age 63



 22 

 

In 2016, Derbyshire had an es mated popula on of 
785,765 people. 17% were children aged 0‐15, 62% 
were of working age (16‐64 years), and 21% were aged 
65 and over. The age profile of the county is older than 
that for England. Across the county, the districts of 
Derbyshire Dales and North East Derbyshire had notably 
older age profiles than the Derbyshire average and 
South Derbyshire and Bolsover had notably younger age 
profiles. 

Derbyshire’s popula on is expected to rise by 10% by 
2039, the equivalent of 79,045 people. This is lower 
than the 16% popula on growth expected for England.  
Derbyshire has an increasingly ageing popula on with 
the number of people aged 65 and over forecast to 
increase significantly by 58% (92,175) over this period. 
The number of children in the county is set to increase 
by 5% (6,129), lower than the 9% forecast for England. 
Derbyshire’s working age popula on is projected to fall 
by 4% (19,629) by 2039. Na onally an increase of 4% is 
expected. This will mean there are fewer working age 
residents suppor ng those aged 65 and over. 

 
 
 
 

Popula on 
Popula on by age and gender (2016) 

Sources: 2016, Mid‐year Popula on Es mates and 2014 Sub‐na onal Popula on Projec ons, ONS, © Crown Copyright 

P
age 64



 

 23 

 

Travel to work areas provide an indica#on of how the 

local labour market operates, showing the pa?erns of 

people travelling from where they live to their place of 

work. The majority of Derbyshire is covered by three 

travel to work areas, and iden#fies the towns of 

Chesterfield, Buxton and Derby as key employment 

centres within the county.  

More Derbyshire residents leave the county for work 

than commute in from neighbouring areas. In 2011, a 

total of 128,436 workers travelled out of the county for 

work, whilst 72,964 travelled in. Since the 2001 Census 

there has been a reduc#on in the level of people leaving 

the county for work, which is encouraging. Locally, only 

the districts of Chesterfield and Derbyshire Dales have a 

net gain of commuters. North East Derbyshire shows 

the greatest net loss of workers.  

The central loca#on of the county means the 

neighbouring towns and ci#es exert significant 

influence. By local authority, the greatest percentage of 

out-bound commuters travel to Derby (20.2%), followed 

by Sheffield (12.4%) and NoBngham (8.6%). Almost a 

quarter of jobs are filled by people travelling from 

outside of Derbyshire. Derby is the greatest source of 

labour (17.3% of in-bound commuters), followed by 

Sheffield (12.8%) and Ashfield (8.8%). 

Travel to Work 
Derbyshire and surrounding Travel to Work areas 

Net flow of commuters by district (2011) 

Source: 2011 Census – Table WU01 UK Travel Flows (Local Authority), ONS © Crown Copyright  

P
age 65



 24 

 

Derbyshire's employment rate has con#nued to 

increase since the last LEA in 2014 and now stands at 

77.9%, nearly 3% points higher than the England rate. 

Employment rates na#onally and locally are now 

amongst the highest they have been since 2004, 

reflec#ng the improving economic picture.  

Across England, there are over two million more people 

in work since the end of the 2008 recession and over 

27,000 more in Derbyshire. Given the record levels of 

employment and with the number of job vacancies at 

their highest level since the early 2000s, there has been 

debate about whether the na#on is at, or near, full 

employment.  

However, underemployment, where people are 

working fewer hours than they would like, remains a 

feature of the economy. Around 8% (2.5m) of people 

currently in employment in the UK say they would like 

to work more hours, an indica#on there remains some 

slack in the UK labour market. In Derbyshire, around a 

third of the workforce is part-#me and it is likely that a 

significant number of these workers will be 

underemployed. Hidden unemployment is also an issue 

across the country with many disabled people being 

economically inac#ve when they would like to be 

working.  

Employment Derbyshire's 

employment rate 

78% 

74 82 

              Employment rate (2008-2017) 

Source: Annual Popula#on Survey, December 2017, and Business Register and Employment Survey, 2016, ONS © Crown Copyright 

The employment rate in Bolsover fell 

by more than 10% points between 

March 2014 and March 2015 

contribu#ng to a dip in the Derbyshire 

employment rate       

The employment rate 

in Derbyshire fell to 

71% in September 

2011 when the impact 

of the recession was at 

its greatest 

Mar 2008 Dec 2017 

P
age 66



 

 25 

 

Employment forecasts 

Over the next 15 years, Derbyshire’s employment levels 

are forecast to increase by around 3%. Although lower 

than the na#onal forecast of 8%, it s#ll equates to an 

extra 10,000 jobs. Addi#onally, economic growth is 

forecast to be on a par with that na#onally. This may 

reflect the significance of manufacturing in Derbyshire, 

a sector likely to be at the forefront of produc#vity 

improvement. It is important that labour supply, which 

is projected to fall by 2% over the period, meets the 

skills demands of Derbyshire’s growing economy. 

There are major differences by sector. Although many 

service sectors are forecast to grow, the largest growth 

in employment is in Residen#al and social care, which is 

predicted to see an addi#onal 3,500 (17.2%) employees 

by 2030, reflec#ng the demands of an ageing 

popula#on. Three other sectors are forecast to see rises 

of more than 2,000 employees; Retail (+2,900), Public 

administra#on & defence (2,500) and Wholesale 

(2,100).  

Manufacturing sectors dominate areas where large 

declines are predicted, the largest being for Non-

metallic mineral products (-2,900). Educa#on, Metals & 

metal products, Agriculture, forestry & fishing, Tex#les 

and Machinery are also forecast to see employee levels 

reduce by more than 1,000.  

Forecast change in employment numbers by sector (2014-2030)  

Source: Employment forecasts, Cambridge Econometrics for the Midlands Engine, November 2015      

P
age 67



 26 

 

Unemployment 

In March 2018, the county’s claimant unemployment 

rate of 1.6% remained below the England average 

(2.1%). However, at district level, the claimant 

unemployment rate in Erewash (2.7%) and Chesterfield 

(2.3%) was higher than the na#onal rate with all other 

districts falling below the England average. The lowest 

rates were in Derbyshire Dales (0.7%) and South 

Derbyshire (0.8%).  

At a very local level, 33 of the county's 174 wards had 

unemployment rates above the na#onal average. 

Wards with par#cularly high levels of unemployment 

include Cotmanhay (5.8%) and Awsworth Road (5.4%) in 

Erewash and Rother (5.0%) and St Helens (4.3%) in 

Chesterfield. Generally, wards with higher rates of 

claimant unemployment are located in urban areas, 

such as Chesterfield or Ilkeston. Compara#vely, rural 

areas tend to have lower unemployment.  

A total of 1,175 people in Derbyshire had been out of 

work for more than a year. These long-term 

unemployed residents accounted for 31.0% of the 

county’s unemployed, below the na#onal average of 

34.2%. Almost a quarter (23.5%) of all who are 

unemployed in the county are young people aged 16-24 

years, above the England propor#on of 19.5%. 

Unemployment by ward – March 2018 

In March 2018, 33 of Derbyshire’s 174 

wards had an unemployment rate above 

the na#onal average (2.1%) 

Mapped by Policy and Research 

© Crown copyright and database rights (2018) 

Ordnance Survey Licence Number [100023251]  

Source: Claimant Count Unemployment, March 2018, ONS, © Crown Copyright 

P
age 68



 

 27 

 

Earnings 

Despite a gradual growth in the level of earnings since 

2009, the average weekly wage in Derbyshire remains 

below that for England.  

Across the majority of Derbyshire districts, the earnings 

of those living in the area (residence based) are 

significantly higher than the earnings of those who work 

in the area (workplace earnings). 

The average weekly earnings of a Derbyshire resident 

are £530, 5% less than the na#onal average of £555. 

The average weekly wage paid by a Derbyshire business 

is £497, 11% below the na#onal average of £555. This 

reflects the lower skilled employment structure of the 

county and the travel by some residents out of 

Derbyshire to work in order to secure higher wages.  

Locally, there are considerable varia#ons in earnings 

levels. Residents in South Derbyshire and Derbyshire 

Dales earn the highest whilst those in Bolsover earn the 

lowest. For workplace earnings, businesses in Amber 

Valley pay the highest weekly wages whilst those in 

Bolsover pay the lowest. 

Average weekly earnings of a full-�me worker (2009-2017) 

In 2017 the average weekly earnings of a 

Derbyshire resident was £530, higher than 

the weekly wage of £497 paid by a 

Derbyshire business 

Despite a gradual growth in earnings overall, 

both resident and workplace earnings in 

Derbyshire fall below the na#onal average 

Average weekly earnings by District (2017) 

Source: Annual Survey of Hours and Earnings, 2017, ONS, © Crown Copyright 

P
age 69



 28 

 

Qualifica�ons 

The qualifica#on levels of Derbyshire's working age 

popula#on (aged 16-64 years) have greatly improved 

since 2007 when the propor#on of people qualified to 

NVQ Level 4+ (degree level or above) was 25.9% and 

12.5% of people had no qualifica#ons. In 2017, 33.0% of 

the county's residents have a level 4 qualifica#on and 

just 7.0% have no qualifica#ons. 

However, there con#nues to be a significant skills gap at 

level 4+ with rela#vely fewer Derbyshire residents with 

higher level qualifica#ons compared with England, a 

factor that varies significantly locally. The propor#on of 

the workforce qualified to level 4+ varies by more than 

20% points across the county, from 47.4% in Derbyshire 

Dales to 25.8% in Bolsover. 

Derbyshire has fewer people qualified to higher levels 

than the na#onal average. The county’s strength is mid-

range with greater numbers of people having their 

highest level of qualifica#on at level 1, 2 or 3.  

  

 

  

 

Qualifica�on levels (2007-2017)  

Qualified to level 4 or above  

No qualifica�ons  Derbyshire 

England 

Qualified to NVQ level 4+ (% - 2017)  

Source: Annual Popula#on Survey, Jan - Dec 2017, ONS, © Crown Copyright, Department for Educa#on. Published 2017  

P
age 70



 

 29 

 

Fewer Derbyshire residents work in higher level 

occupa#ons than across England, reflec#ng the county's 

different industrial structure. 

The occupa#onal profile of Derbyshire's firms is also 

lower than for Derbyshire residents due to the rela#vely 

large number of people who commute out of the 

county for higher level jobs elsewhere. 

Although Derbyshire residents have a less skilled job 

profile than across England, there are considerable 

differences within the county. In Derbyshire Dales, over 

60.0% of residents are in higher level jobs
2
, whereas in 

Bolsover the figure is less than a third.  

Despite this the occupa#onal profile of both residents 

and firms locally is improving. Since the 2014 Local 

Economic Assessment, the propor#on of residents in 

higher level occupa#ons such as managers and senior 

officials has risen slightly, along with an increase in the 

propor#on of local firms with higher level occupa#ons.         

However, the gap in the occupa#onal profile of 

Derbyshire’s firms is widening when compared with 

that of England. This is important given the debate 

about the need to a?ract higher value firms to the 

county to s#mulate produc#vity growth.  

Occupa�ons 

Source: Annual Popula#on Survey, Jan – Dec 2017, ONS, © Crown Copyright 

P
age 71



 30 

 

Appren�ceships  

Increasing both the quality and quan#ty of 

appren#ceships is seen as a central part to raising skills 

and produc#vity levels across England. In 2016/17, over 

9,000 Derbyshire residents started an appren#ceship, a 

take-up level of 1.9, higher than the 1.4 for England. 

Take-up levels are the greatest in Bolsover and 

Chesterfield and lowest in Derbyshire Dales and High 

Peak. The low take-up in these areas is likely to reflect 

the reduced levels of access to provision in the more 

rural areas of the county. 

Importantly more appren#ces are achieving in 

Derbyshire. Since 2011/12 there has been an 11.7% 

increase in appren#ceship achievement rates locally, 

greater than the 7.6% across England. All districts, other 

than North East Derbyshire, have experienced 

improvements or the same level of achievement with 

High Peak showing the largest rise.     

Analysis of appren#ceship starts shows 42.2% of all 

starts in the county are aged 25+, with the majority of 

starts at intermediate level. Higher level 

appren#ceships have only been up and running since 

2010 and the number of people taking them is rela#vely 

low. However, higher level appren#ceships are on the 

increase locally as are advanced appren#ceships.  

Appren�ceship starts – rate per working age popula�on (16-64 years)

Appren�ceship starts by level and age (% - 2016/17) 

25+  

19-24 

Under 19 

Higher  

Advanced  

Intermediate 

Source: Appren#ceship data tool 2011/ 2012 to 2016/ 2017 Final v4, Department for Educa#on, © Crown Copyright  

P
age 72



 

 31 

 

Young People  

The a?ainment 8
3 
score at age 16 in Derbyshire is 

slightly below the England average, with the average 

score per pupil for Derbyshire being 45.6. Within the 

county, a?ainment levels are lowest in Erewash (42.4), 

Bolsover (42.7) and South Derbyshire (44.1).  

These results #e in with recent na#onal research which 

highlights that these three districts along with 

Chesterfield and Amber Valley are social mobility cold 

spots. The research ranks all local authori#es na#onally 

based on range of social mobility indicators, with a 

focus on the achievement of young people eligible for 

free school meals. Social mobility cold spots are areas 

falling in the lowest 20% ranked local authori#es 

na#onally. Despite this, 95% of the county’s pupils do 

progress into educa#on, employment or training 

beyond key stage 4.     

As for 16 year olds, the a?ainment levels in the county 

of 18 year olds are lower than the na#onal average. In 

Derbyshire the average points scored per entry at level 

3, which includes A-levels and voca#onal qualifica#ons, 

is 29.7 compared with 32.3 across England.  

Around 50% of 18 year olds locally progress into higher 

educa#on (HE), with 16% going to the top third of HE 

ins#tu#ons, slightly lower than the England average of 

18%. 

Average aMainment 8 score (GCSE)  Pupils entering educa�on, employment 

or training (EET) at age 16 (%) 
Derbyshire Dales has the 

highest a?ainment 8 

score (50.0) 

50.0 - 51.0 

46.7 – 50.0 

45.8 - 46.7 

42.7 - 45.8 

42.4 - 42.7 

97-98 

96-97 

95-96 

93-95 

92-93 

Derbyshire Dales has 

the highest 

% of EET (97%) 

Erewash has 

the lowest  

a?ainment 8  

score (42.4) 

Bolsover has the lowest 

% of pupils entering EET 

at 16 (92%) 

© Crown copyright and database rights (2018) 

Ordnance Survey Licence Number [100023251] 

Derbyshire  

England  

45.6 

46.4 

95.0 

94.0 

29.7 

32.3 

50.0 

51.0 

Sources: SFR01 2016/17, des#na#ons of key stage 4 and 5 students 2015/16, and A-level and other 16-18 results (revised) 

2016/17, Department for Educa#on, © Crown Copyright. Also State of the Na#on 2017, Social Mobility Commission   

% of pupils  

entering Higher  

Educa�on at  

Age 18 

Average 

aMainment 

score at age 

18  

% of Pupils 

entering 

EET at 16 

Average 

aMainment 

8 score per 

pupil 

P
age 73



 32 

 

Skills demand 

According to Labour Insight’s labour market intelligence 

tool, there were over 6,000 vacancies across Derby and 

Derbyshire in January 2018. Six occupa#onal areas 

make up more than 50% of all vacancies, including 

Health and social care (12.0%), Engineering (9.1%), 

Educa#on and training (8.9%), Business management 

(8.5%), I.T. (7.3%) and Sales (7.3%).   

Although the current labour market is buoyant, there 

are a number of challenges facing employers. Analysis 

of the Chamber of Commerce’s latest quarterly 

Economic Survey revealed that 60% of firms had 

a?empted to recruit, with around half of these 

experiencing recruitment difficul#es. The most 

significant skills shortage areas are Skilled trades, 

Professional services and Machine opera#ves. 

Addi#onally around 5% of the county’s workforce are 

seen as having a gap in skills.  

Around 30% of UK jobs are poten#ally at high risk of 

automa#on by the early 2030’s but alongside this new 

jobs are expected to emerge. Derbyshire’s economy is 

es#mated to grow with nearly 10,000 addi#onal jobs 

forecast over the next 15 years. This is posi#ve 

par#cularly given that three of the county’s largest 

sectors, Transporta#on & storage, Manufacturing and 

Wholesale & retail are iden#fied as those most at risk of 

automa#on across the UK. 

 

Number of vacancies by occupa�onal group     

Source: Labour Insight by Burning Glass Technologies, January 2018   

P
age 74



 

 33 

 

 

 

 

Analysis of the key economic indicators for the county shows that the 

economic landscape has progressed since the last Local Economic 

Assessment. There are some clear areas where the economy has 

flourished but also areas where focus is needed if the county’s economy is 

to con#nue to grow and prosper. This SWOT analysis provides an 

overview of the strengths and weaknesses of Derbyshire’s economy but 

also the key opportuni#es and challenges that the county’s economy is 

currently facing. 

 

Investment 

Derbyshire’s produc#vity levels have greatly improved over recent years, 

and the gap with England is reducing. Locally the largest sectors that are 

forecast to experience growth in employment are Heath & social care and 

Retail. As these sectors are predominately lower value, there will be a 

need to a?ract higher value businesses and employment opportuni#es 

into the area in order to con#nue improving produc#vity levels. There is 

also the need to maintain the support to exis#ng businesses to ensure the 

key sector strengths that already exist across the county are built upon 

and developed.  

 

Despite the increasing importance of the service sector in the UK 

economy, manufacturing remains a hugely significant part of the local 

economy in Derbyshire. The county’s diverse and produc#ve 

manufacturing base plays a significant role in the government’s 

aspira#ons for industry. Successful adop#on of Industry 4.0 prac#ces  

 

 

 
 

locally will underpin this. More broadly, it will be important that firms 

across the whole spectrum of the local economy are able to maximise 

opportuni#es that arise through HS2 and Brexit.  

 

Derbyshire has a high quality landscape and rich cultural heritage which 

are key economic assets that contribute to the area’s thriving visitor 

economy. Promo#ng the county and what it has to offer, to both visitors 

and poten#al inward investors, will con#nue to be a key priority for DCC 

and partners.  

 

Infrastructure 

Derbyshire has an excellent transport infrastructure es#mated to be 

worth £3.5 billion. The maintenance, management and development of 

the county's transport network plays a vital role in suppor#ng the local 

economy and its future growth. Ensuring future transport investment links 

up with the planned development of sites in Derbyshire will be key. 

 

Technology also plays a crucial role in suppor#ng the local economy and 

enabling local businesses to compete. The £34 million Digital Derbyshire 

programme aims to provide 98% of homes and businesses in the county 

with access to broadband and is on track to deliver fibre broadband to 

112,000 premises by June 2020. 

SWOT analysis 

P
age 75



 34 

 

Enterprise 

Established businesses in Derbyshire are thriving, with more of the 

county’s firms surviving than the na#onal average. Whilst this suggests an 

opera#ng landscape in Derbyshire that helps firms, there remains a gap 

around the levels of business start-ups. Entrepreneurship is a priority 

na#onally so providing the right climate to support and encourage more 

people to start businesses is essen#al. S#mula#ng interest in and 

suppor#ng entrepreneurship within the county can also help to boost 

aspira#on in schools and have a broader economic impact.  

 

Skills and aMainment 

There are more residents in Derbyshire who work in higher level 

occupa#ons than there are higher level jobs available with local 

employers, sugges#ng that the large number of residents that commute 

outside of the county do so for higher level jobs. At the same #me 

employers locally are repor#ng recruitment difficul#es. This suggests 

there is a mismatch in the skill levels held by residents and those that are 

required by some local employers. There is a need to support ac#vity to 

ensure the skills local employers demand are adequately matched 

through the educa#on and training provision available. This is likely to 

require improvements in understanding the needs of businesses and how 

this can be?er inform provision.  

 

A?ainment levels of young people at age 16 and 18 are below average, 

with educa#onal achievement in some parts of the county considerably 

lower. These results #e in with recent na#onal research which highlights 

that five of Derbyshire’s districts are social mobility cold spots, where the 

achievement of young people from disadvantaged backgrounds lags 

behind that in other parts of the country. With employment set to grow  

 

across Derbyshire but the working age popula#on set to decline it is 

important that as many young people as possible are equipped to 

contribute fully to the labour market. This also includes those leaving 

university locally. Enhancing the skills and occupa#onal profile of the 

county’s businesses, whilst ensuring that young people can connect with 

local businesses, will help to raise aspira#on and a?ainment long-term. 

 

 

P
age 76



 

 35 

 

P
age 77



 

 36 

 

End notes 

1. Industry 4.0 is a name for the current trend of 

automa#on and data exchange in manufacturing 

technologies. It includes cyber-physical systems, 

the Internet of things, cloud compu#ng and 

cogni#ve compu#ng. Industry 4.0 is commonly 

referred to as the fourth industrial revolu#on and 

creates what has been called a ‘smart factory’.  

2. 'Higher level’ occupa#onal groups are defined as 

Standard Occupa#onal Classifica#on (SOC) 2010 

major groups 1 (managers, directors and senior 

officials), 2 (professional occupa#ons) and 3 

(associate professional and technical occupa#ons).  

'Middle level’ occupa#onal groups are defined as 

SOC 2010 major groups 4 (administra#ve and 

secretarial occupa#ons), 5 (skilled trades 

occupa#ons), 6 (caring, leisure and other service 

occupa#ons) and 7 (sales and customer service 

occupa#ons). 'Lower level’ occupa#onal groups 

are defined as SOC 2010 major groups 8 (process, 

plant and machine opera#ves) and 9 (elementary 

occupa#ons). 

3. The AMainment 8 score measures the 

achievement of a pupil across eight different 

subjects. Pupils are given a score in eight different  

 subjects taken for GCSEs and approved non-

 GCSEs. These are English and maths (which have 

 double weigh#ng); the three sciences, geography, 

 computer sciences and history, which count 

 towards the English Baccalaureate (Ebacc); and 

 then three more out the Ebacc subjects or other 

 approved academic, arts or voca#onal subjects. 

 For each subject, pupils are given a mark from 1 to 

 9 (for English and maths) or from 1 to 8.5 (for 

 other subjects). A score of 1 is roughly equivalent 

 to a GCSE 'G' grade, and a 9 is roughly equivalent 

 to a GCSE 'A*' grade.  

P
age 78



 37 

 

Version Author Date Contact 

0.2 

Controlled 
Policy and Research, Commissioning, Communities and 

Policy, Derbyshire County Council 
21/06/2018 research@derbyshire.gov.uk 

Source Geography 

Various, see End Notes Derbyshire, England 

Author Policy and Research 

Version V0.2 Controlled 

Date 21/06/2018 

Geography District, Derbyshire, 

P
age 79



T
his page is intentionally left blank



20 November 2018

ECONOMY AND GROWTH 
Chairman: Councillor A McKeown
Vice Chairman: Councillor Grooby

Lead Officer: Dai Larner

Date Items Contact Officer Purpose/Method of 
Consideration

Derbyshire Local Economic Assessment 2018 S Porru
Future High Street Fund: Draft Buxton Visitor Economy 
Strategy & Glossop Creative Industries Assessment

S Porru

Work Programme

22-Nov-18

Statement of Community Involvement - public consultation Jo Bagnall
Trans Pennine Upgrade (TBC) Mark James
Greater Manchester Spatial Framework Update Sarah Porru
Fairfield Roundabout and Link Road – Housing 
Infrastructure Fund (Part 2)

S Porru

Work Programme

7-Feb-19

Work Programme21-Mar-19

Appointment of Chairman and Vice Chairman
Work Programme

Jun-19

Work ProgrammeJul-19

Sep-19 Work Programme

P
age 81

A
genda Item

 7



20 November 2018

ECONOMY AND GROWTH 

Other infrastructure updates ? Mark James/Partners 
to be invited to attend

Update/s on Peak Park Local Plan ?
Arrangements in Derbyshire and Nottinghamshire to 
create metro area
Hospital sites in Buxton ?

To add in

P
age 82


	Agenda
	4 To approve the minutes of the previous meeting
	5 Future High Street Fund: Draft Buxton Visitor Economy Strategy & Glossop Creative Industries Assessment
	Appendix 1

	6 Derbyshire Local Economic Assessment 2018
	Appendix 1

	7 Select Committee Work Programme

